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DETAILS OF IND EPENDENT DIRECTOR  SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT  

SPECIAL BUSINESS ITEM NO. 5 
Name of the Director Mr. Ramesh Agrawal 
DIN 07599354 
Date  of Birth 04/12/1959 
Qualification LLB Honors 
Date of Joining the Board 01/10/2016 
Experience in Specific Functional Areas Legal 
Profile of Director Independent Director 
Directorship held in other Companies including Listed 
Companies (excluding Section 8 Companies) 

 
0 

Membership/Chairmanships of Committees of other 
Companies 

0 

Number of Shares held in the Company   0 
Relationship with any Director(s) of the Company N.A. 

 
ITEM 6 :-  
 
Mr. Ramesh Goyal was appointed as Whole Time Director of the Company & he holds the office as Whole 
Time Director of the Company upto 30th January, 2021. As per the recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and approval by board of directors   in their meeting duly held and convened on 28th 
June, 2021 Mr. Ramesh Goyal has been re-appointed as Whole Time Director of the Company for the further 
period of 3 years w.e.f. 28th June, 2021 to 27th June, 2024.   
 
The Board based on the performance evaluation & as per the recommendation of the Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee considers that, given his background & experience & contributions made by him 
during his tenure, the continued association of Mr. Ramesh Goyal would be beneficial to the Company & it is 
desirable to continue to avail his services as a Whole Time Director. 
 
Accordingly, it is proposed to re-appoint Mr. Ramesh Goyal as Whole Time Director of the Company, who 
shall be liable to retire by rotation, for a further period of 3 years w.e.f 28th June, 2021 to 27th June, 2024 on the 
Board of the Company & further Mr. Ramesh Goyal is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in 
terms of Section 164 of the Act & has given his consent to act as a Director.  
 
He shall be paid remuneration upto the amount of Rs. 32,40,000/- p.a. Plus Leave Encashment for the financial 
year 2021-2022. He shall also be given the facility of Car, telephone & Mobile as per Company rules & shall 
also be entitled for the Gratuity, Provident Fund & Leave Travel Concessions within the limits prescribed in 
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Additional Information in accordance with Schedule V:- 
 

I. General Information:  
 

SR. NO. PARTICULARS  DETAILS  
1. Nature of Industry Other Food Products Industry 
2. Date or expected date of commencement of 

commercial production 
Jan., 1986 

3. Expected date of commencement of activities 
as per project approved by financial institutions 
appearing in the prospectus (For New 
Companies) 

NA 

4. Financial performance based on given 
indicators  

Current Year 
(Amt. in Lakhs) 

Previous Year 
(Amt. in Lakhs) 
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(2020-2021) (2019-2020) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. 

Total Revenue 20005.41 27212.82 
Total Expenses 19899.15 27056.80 
Profit Before Tax 106.27 156.02 
Tax Expenses 3.7 41.02 

Short/(Excess) provision of Income Tax of 
Earlier years 0.00 0.00 

Current Tax 20.80 28.35 

Earlier Years Tax 0.75 4.40 

Deferred Tax 1.60 35.96 

MAT Credit Entitlement (19.45) (27.69) 

Profit After Tax 102.57 115.01 
Carried to Balance Sheet 102.57 115.01 
Foreign investments or collaborations, if any NA 

 
II. Information about the Appointee: 

 
(1) Background details 

 
SR. NO. PARTICULARS  DETAILS  

 Background Details 
 Date of Birth 11.03.1951 
 Qualification - 
 Experience 28 years 
 Office Address First Floor, Shree Ram Chambers, 12 Agrawal 

Nagar, Main Road, Indore 
 Residential Address House No. 74, Old Agrawal Nagar, Indore (M.P.). 
 Permanent Account Number ADZPG7781N 

 
2. Past Remuneration Upto Rs. 1,50,000 /- p.m. 

 
3. Recognition Or Awards NIL 

 
4. Job Profile and his Suitability He has overall 28 years of experience in the 

manufacturing, marketing & selling maize, starch, 
dextrose & other. 

 
5. Proposed Remuneration Upto Rs. 32,40,000 /- p.a. Plus Leave Encashment 

for the Financial year 2021-2022. 
 
 Comparative remuneration profile with 

respect to industry, size of the company, 
profile of the position and person (in case of 
expatriates the relevant details would be with 
respect to the country of his origin) 

NA 

 Pecuniary relationship directly or 
indirectly with the company, or 
relationship with the managerial personnel, 
if any 

Having transaction of Loan and Remuneration 
with company and holding share capital of the 
company. 

 
 

       III. Other information:  
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SR. NO. PARTICULARS  DETAILS  
1. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits Less margin due to market condition and 

higher interest rate. 
2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken 
for improvement 

Company is trying to reduce the interest 
cost and increase the margin. 

3. Expected increase in profits in 
measurable terms 

It is expected that Company shall increase 
its in next 2 years. 

 
IV. Disclosures: 

 
SR. NO. PARTICULARS  DETAILS  
1. All elements of remuneration package 
such as salary, benefits, bonuses, 
stock options, pension, etc., of all the 
directors 

As per Resolution 

2. Details of fixed component and 
performance linked incentives along 
with the performance criteria 

As per Resolution 

3. Service contracts, notice period, 
severance fees 

30 days 

4. Stock option details, if any, and 
whether the same has been issued at a 
discount as well as the period over 
which accrued and over which 
exercisable 

Nil  

 
The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice for the approval by the 
Members of the Company    
 
Mr. Ramesh Goyal is interested in the resolution set out in Item No. 6 of the Notice with regard to his re-
appointment to the extent of their shareholding interest in the Company. Save and except the above, none of the 
other Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/their relatives is, in any way, concerned & 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.         
 
Item No. 7 & 8: 
 
Presently the Authorized Capital of the Company is Rs. 12,25,00,000/- (Rupees Twelve Crore Twenty Five 
Lakhs) divided into 80,00,000 (Eighty Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each and 42,50,000 (Forty 
Two Lakhs Fifty thousand) Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten).  
  
In this regard, the Board proposes that the Company should increase its Authorised share capital from Rs. 
12,25,00,000 to Rs 12,50,00,000/- (Rupees Twelve Crore Fifty lakhs) by creation of new Shares comprising of 
82.50 Lakhs Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each and 42.50 Lakhs Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each to its existing 
Capital. 
 
The increase in the Authorized Capital requires approval of members in the General Meeting by way of Ordinary 
Resolution u/s 61 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Further Memorandum of Association needs to be altered by way of Ordinary Resolution, for modification in the 
Existing Clause V for reflecting the Increased Authorised Share Capital of the Company a copy of the draft of the 
same as placed before the Meeting. 
 
The alteration in Memorandum of Association requires approval of members in the General Meeting by way of 
Ordinary Resolution u/s 13 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

21



Your directors propose to pass the resolution as set out in the Item No. 7 & 8 of the notice. Draft of the altered 
copy of the Memorandum of Association and other relevant documents are available for inspection till the 
conclusion of the general meeting. 
 
None of the Director of the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested in the proposed resolution. 
 
Item No. 9: 
 
As per the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval by board of directors in 
their meeting held on 28th June, 2021, has approved increase in Remuneration of Mr. Amit Modi (DIN: 
03124351), Managing Director of the Company from the F.Y. 2021-2022 upto his remaining tenure. The terms 
and conditions including Remuneration are as mentioned below:  
 
1. ADDITIONAL  INFORMATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH SCHEDULE V: - 
 

I. General Information:  
SR. NO. PARTICULARS  DETAILS  
1. Nature of Industry Other Food Products Industry 
2. Date or expected date of commencement of 

commercial production 
Jan., 1986 

3. Expected date of commencement of activities as per 
project approved by financial institutions appearing 
in the prospectus (For New Companies) 

NA 

4. Financial performance based on given indicators  Current Year 
 (Amt. in Lakhs) 
(2020-2021) 

Previous Year 
 (Amt. in Lakhs) 
(2019-2020) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. 

Total Revenue 20005.41 27212.82 
Total Expenses 19899.15 27056.80 
Profit Before Tax 106.27 156.02 

Tax Expenses 3.7 41.02 

Short/(Excess) provision of Income Tax of Earlier 
years 0.00 0.00 

Current Tax 20.80 28.35 

Earlier Years Tax 0.75 4.40 

Deferred Tax 1.60 35.96 

MAT Credit Entitlement (19.45) (27.69) 

Profit After Tax 102.57 115.01 
Carried to Balance Sheet 102.57 115.01 
Foreign investments or collaborations, if any NA 

 
II. Information about the Appointee: 

 
(1) Background details 

SR. NO. PARTICULARS  DETAILS  
 Background Details 
 Name Amit Modi  

 Date of Birth 20.10.1976 
 Qualification B.Com & MBA 
 Experience 23 years 
 Office Address First Floor, Shree Ram Chambers, 12 Agrawal Nagar, 

Main Road, Indore 
 Residential Address 244, Shrinagar Main, Indore (M.P.) 
 Permanent Account Number AEEPM7790P 

 
2. Past Remuneration Upto Rs. 2,00,000 /- p.m. 
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3. Recognition Or Awards NIL 

 
4. Job Profile and his Suitability He has overall 23 years of Industry experience in the 

Production, marketing, sales, administration, liasioning 
and human resource. 

 
5. Proposed Remuneration Upto Rs. 73,20,000/- p.a. Plus Leave Encashment. 

 
 Comparative remuneration profile with respect to 

industry, size of the company, profile of the 
position and person (in case of expatriates the 
relevant details would be with respect to the 
country of his origin) 

NA 

 Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly 
with the company, or relationship with the 
managerial personnel, if any 

Having transaction of Loan and Remuneration with 
company and holding share capital of the company. 

 
       III. Other information:  

SR. NO. PARTICULARS  DETAILS  
1. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits Less margin due to market condition and higher 

interest rate. 
2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for 
improvement 

Company is trying to reduce the interest cost and 
increase the margin. 

3. Expected increase in profits in measurable 
terms 

It is expected that Company shall increase its in 
next 2 years. 

 
IV. Disclosures: 

SR. NO. PARTICULARS  DETAILS  
1. All elements of remuneration package such as 
salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, 
pension, etc., of all the directors 

As per Resolution 

2. Details of fixed component and performance 
linked incentives along with the performance 
criteria 

As per Resolution 

3. Service contracts, notice period, severance 
fees 

30 days 

4. Stock option details, if any, and whether the 
same has been issued at a discount as well as 
the period over which accrued and over which 
exercisable 

Nil  

 
The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 9 of the Notice for the approval by the 
Members of the Company 
    
Save & except the above mentioned Director & their relatives, none of the Director/Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company/their relatives are in anyway, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set 
out in Item No. 9 of the Notice.. 
 
Item No. 10: 
 
As per the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval by board of directors in 
their meeting held on 28th June, 2021, has approved increase in Remuneration of Mr. Ramdas Goyal (DIN: 
00150037), Chairman & Whole Time Director of the Company from the F.Y. 2021-2022 upto his remaining 
tenure. The terms and conditions including Remuneration are as mentioned below:  
 

1.  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH SCHE DULE V: - 
 
 

I. General Information:  
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SR. NO. PARTICULARS  DETAILS  
1. Nature of Industry Other Food Products Industry 
2. Date or expected date of commencement of 

commercial production 
Jan., 1986 

3. Expected date of commencement of activities as per 
project approved by financial institutions appearing 
in the prospectus (For New Companies) 

NA 

4. Financial performance based on given indicators  Current Year (Amt. in 
Lakhs) 
(2020-2021) 

Previous Year (Amt. in 
Lakhs) 
(2019-2020) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. 

Total Revenue 20005.41 27212.82 
Total Expenses 19899.15 27056.80 
Profit Before Tax 106.27 156.02 

Tax Expenses 3.7 41.02 

Short/(Excess) provision of Income Tax of Earlier 
years 0.00 0.00 

Current Tax 20.80 28.35 

Earlier Years Tax 0.75 4.40 

Deferred Tax 1.60 35.96 

MAT Credit Entitlement (19.45) (27.69) 

Profit After Tax 102.57 115.01 
Carried to Balance Sheet 102.57 115.01 
Foreign investments or collaborations, if any NA 

 
II. Information about the Appointee: 

 
(1) Background details 

SR. NO. PARTICULARS  DETAILS  
 Background Details 
 Name Ramdas Goyal 

 Date of Birth 22.02.1947 
 Qualification M.com & LLB 
 Experience 37 years 
 Office Address First Floor, Shree Ram Chambers, 12 Agrawal Nagar, 

Main Road, Indore 
 Residential Address 575-C, Sneh Nagar, Sch. No. 31, Behind Sapna 

Sangeeta Road, Indore (M.P.). 
 Permanent Account Number ACJPG8121H 

 
2. Past Remuneration Upto Rs. 1,50,000 /- p.m. 

 
3. Recognition Or Awards NIL 

 
4. Job Profile and his Suitability He has overall 37 years of Industry experience in the 

manufacturing, marketing and selling maize, starch, 
dextrose and other chemicals. 

 
5. Proposed Remuneration Upto Rs. 32,40,000/- p.a. Plus Leave Encashment. 

 
 Comparative remuneration profile with respect to 

industry, size of the company, profile of the 
position and person (in case of expatriates the 
relevant details would be with respect to the 
country of his origin) 

NA 

 Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly Having transaction of Loan and Remuneration with 
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with the company, or relationship with the 
managerial personnel, if any 

company and holding share capital of the company. 

 
       III. Other information:  

SR. NO. PARTICULARS  DETAILS  
1. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits Less margin due to market condition and higher 

interest rate. 
2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for 
improvement 

Company is trying to reduce the interest cost and 
increase the margin. 

3. Expected increase in profits in measurable 
terms 

It is expected that Company shall increase its in 
next 2 years. 

 
IV. Disclosures: 

SR. NO. PARTICULARS  DETAILS  
1. All elements of remuneration package such as 
salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, 
pension, etc., of all the directors 

As per Resolution 

2. Details of fixed component and performance 
linked incentives along with the performance 
criteria 

As per Resolution 

3. Service contracts, notice period, severance 
fees 

30 days 

4. Stock option details, if any, and whether the 
same has been issued at a discount as well as 
the period over which accrued and over which 
exercisable 

Nil  

 
The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 10 of the Notice for the approval by the 
Members of the Company  
 
Save & except the above mentioned Director & their relatives, none of the Director/Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company/their relatives are in anyway, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set 
out in Item No. 10 of the Notice. 
 
Item No. 11: 
 
As per the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval by board of directors  in 
their meeting held on 28th June, 2021, has approved increase in Remuneration of Mr. Yogesh Agrawal (DIN: 
00107150), Whole Time Director of the Company from the F.Y. 2021-2022 upto his remaining tenure. The terms 
and conditions including Remuneration are as mentioned below:  
 

1. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH SCHEDULE V: - 
 

I. General Information:  
SR. NO. PARTICULARS  DETAILS  
1. Nature of Industry Other Food Products Industry 
2. Date or expected date of commencement of 

commercial production 
Jan., 1986 

3. Expected date of commencement of activities as per 
project approved by financial institutions appearing 
in the prospectus (For New Companies) 

NA 

4. Financial performance based on given indicators  Current Year (Amt. in 
Lakhs) 
(2020-2021) 

Previous Year (Amt. in 
Lakhs) 
(2019-2020) 

 
 
 
 

Total Revenue 20005.41 27212.82 
Total Expenses 19899.15 27056.80 
Profit Before Tax 106.27 156.02 

Tax Expenses 3.7 41.02 
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5. 

Short/(Excess) provision of Income Tax of Earlier 
years 0.00 0.00 

Current Tax 20.80 28.35 

Earlier Years Tax 0.75 4.40 

Deferred Tax 1.60 35.96 

MAT Credit Entitlement (19.45) (27.69) 

Profit After Tax 102.57 115.01 
Carried to Balance Sheet 102.57 115.01 
Foreign investments or collaborations, if any NA 

 
II. Information about the Appointee: 

 
(1) Background details 

SR. NO. PARTICULARS  DETAILS  
 Background Details 
 Name Yogesh Agrawal 

 Date of Birth 12-05-1963  
 Qualification BSC LLB  
 Experience 35 years 
 Office Address First Floor, Shree Ram Chambers, 12 Agrawal Nagar, 

Main Road, Indore 
 Residential Address 111, Shri Nagar Main, Indore (M.P.). 
 Permanent Account Number ABHPA2446A  

 
2. Past Remuneration Upto Rs. 1,50,000 /- p.m. 

 
3. Recognition Or Awards NIL 

 
4. Job Profile and his Suitability He has overall 35 years of Industry Experience. 

 
5. Proposed Remuneration Upto Rs. 32,40,000/- p.a. Plus Leave Encashment. 

 
 Comparative remuneration profile with respect to 

industry, size of the company, profile of the 
position and person (in case of expatriates the 
relevant details would be with respect to the 
country of his origin) 

NA 

 Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly 
with the company, or relationship with the 
managerial personnel, if any 

Having transaction of Loan and Remuneration with 
company and holding share capital of the company. 

 
       III. Other information:  

SR. NO. PARTICULARS  DETAILS  
1. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits Less margin due to market condition and higher 

interest rate. 
2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for 
improvement 

Company is trying to reduce the interest cost and 
increase the margin. 

3. Expected increase in profits in measurable 
terms 

It is expected that Company shall increase its in 
next 2 years. 

 
IV. Disclosures: 

SR. NO. PARTICULARS  DETAILS  
1. All elements of remuneration package such as 
salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, 
pension, etc., of all the directors 

As per Resolution 

2. Details of fixed component and performance 
linked incentives along with the performance 

As per Resolution 

26



criteria 
3. Service contracts, notice period, severance 
fees 

30 days 

4. Stock option details, if any, and whether the 
same has been issued at a discount as well as 
the period over which accrued and over which 
exercisable 

Nil  

 
The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 11 of the Notice for the approval by the 
Members of the Company 
 
Save & except the above mentioned Director & their relatives, none of the Director/Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company/their relatives are in anyway, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set 
out in Item No. 11 of the Notice.. 
 
Item No. 12: 
 
As per the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval by board of directors in 
their meeting held on 28th June, 2021, has approved increase in Remuneration of Mr. Prakash Bafna (DIN: 
00107070), Whole Time Director of the Company from the F.Y. 2021-2022 upto his remaining tenure. The terms 
and conditions including Remuneration are as mentioned below:  
 

1. ADDITIONAL I NFORMATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH SCHEDULE V: - 
 

I. General Information:  
SR. NO. PARTICULARS  DETAILS  
1. Nature of Industry Other Food Products Industry 
2. Date or expected date of commencement of 

commercial production 
Jan., 1986 

3. Expected date of commencement of activities as per 
project approved by financial institutions appearing 
in the prospectus (For New Companies) 

NA 

4. Financial performance based on given indicators  Current Year  
(Amt. in Lakhs) 
(2020-2021) 

Previous Year  
(Amt. in Lakhs) 
(2019-2020) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. 

Total Revenue 20005.41 27212.82 
Total Expenses 19899.15 27056.80 
Profit Before Tax 106.27 156.02 

Tax Expenses 3.7 41.02 

Short/(Excess) provision of Income Tax of Earlier 
years 0.00 0.00 

Current Tax 20.80 28.35 

Earlier Years Tax 0.75 4.40 

Deferred Tax 1.60 35.96 

MAT Credit Entitlement (19.45) (27.69) 

Profit After Tax 102.57 115.01 
Carried to Balance Sheet 102.57 115.01 
Foreign investments or collaborations, if any NA 

 
II. Information about the Appointee: 

 
(1) Background details 

SR. NO. PARTICULARS  DETAILS  
 Background Details 
 Name Prakash Bafna 
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 Date of Birth 07.05.1948 
 Qualification B.Sc. 
 Experience 34 years 
 Office Address Village Sejwaya, Ghatabillod, Dist. Dhar (M.P.) 
 Residential Address 282, M.G. Road, Dhar (M.P.) 
 Permanent Account Number AAXPB2677D 

 
2. Past Remuneration Upto Rs. 1,50,000 /- p.m. 

 
3. Recognition Or Awards NIL 

 
4. Job Profile and his Suitability He has overall 34 years of Industry Experience in 

trading. 
 

5. Proposed Remuneration Upto Rs. 32,40,000/- p.a. Plus Leave Encashment. 
 
 Comparative remuneration profile with respect to 

industry, size of the company, profile of the 
position and person (in case of expatriates the 
relevant details would be with respect to the 
country of his origin) 

NA 

 Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly 
with the company, or relationship with the 
managerial personnel, if any 

Having transaction of Loan and Remuneration with 
company and holding share capital of the company. 

 
       III. Other information:  

SR. NO. PARTICULARS  DETAILS  
1. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits Less margin due to market condition and higher 

interest rate. 
2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for 
improvement 

Company is trying to reduce the interest cost and 
increase the margin. 

3. Expected increase in profits in measurable 
terms 

It is expected that Company shall increase its in 
next 2 years. 

 
IV. Disclosures: 

SR. NO. PARTICULARS  DETAILS  
1. All elements of remuneration package such as 
salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, 
pension, etc., of all the directors 

As per Resolution 

2. Details of fixed component and performance 
linked incentives along with the performance 
criteria 

As per Resolution 

3. Service contracts, notice period, severance 
fees 

30 days 

4. Stock option details, if any, and whether the 
same has been issued at a discount as well as 
the period over which accrued and over which 
exercisable 

Nil  

 
The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 12 of the Notice for the approval by the 
Members of the Company 
 
Save & except the above mentioned Director & their relatives, none of the Director/Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company/their relatives are in anyway, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set 
out in Item No. 12 of the Notice. 
                                                                                                    ON THE ORDERS OF THE BOARD 
    
                                                                                                     SALONI NAIDU  
PLACE: INDORE                           COMPANY SECRETARY &  
DATE:  13.08.2021                                                      COMPLIANCE OFFICER 
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Annexure to Secretarial Audit Report 

 
 

To, 
The Members, 
Tirupati Starch & Chemicals Limited  
Indore 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 

1. Maintenances of secretarial records are the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done 
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the 
processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our report is based 
on said secretarial records. 
 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts 
of the Company. 
 

4. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other specifically applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the 
verification of procedures on test basis. We have not gone through the laws which are general in 
nature and applicable to the Company. 
 

5. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of 
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 

6. Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation and declaration about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulation and happening of events etc. 

 
For P.S. Tripathi & Associates 
Company Secretaries 
 

 
 

Place: Indore                        Pratik Tripathi  
Date: 13/08/2021              Partner 
UDIN: F005812C000779552                               C.P. No. 5358 
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                                                                                           ANNEXURE- II  

 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION  

AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO  
[Section 134(3)(m) of The Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of The Companies Accounts) Rules, 2014] 

 
A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY  
 
Your Company continues its policy of giving priority to energy conservation measures including  
regular review of energy conservation, consumption and effective control of utilization of energy. 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

1. Steps taken or impact on conservation of 
energy 

We produce Biogas from steep Liquor 
which is used for drying Gluten. This 
helps us is saving Fuel in Gluten Dryer. 

2. The steps taken by the Company for utilizing 
alternate sources of energy 

We are planning for Procurement of 
electricity from Solar Energy in near 
future 

3. Capital investment on energy conservation 
equipment 

NA 

 
B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION  
 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

1. Efforts made towards technology absorption NA 
2. Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts NA 
3. Details of technology imported during last three years: NA 
 i. The details of technology imported 

ii. The year of Import 
iii.  Whether the technology been fully absorbed 
iv. If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not 

taken place 
v. The Expenditure incurred on Research & Development 

NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 

 
NA 

 
C.  FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:  
 
Value of import and indigenous material consumed (please refer Financial Statements and other  
information relating import and export are as under: 
 

Sr. 
No. Particulars Amount (in Rupees) 

(a) Value of imports calculated on C.I.F. basis by the company 
during the financial year in respect of 
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Raw Materials - 
 
 
Components and spare parts 
 
Capital Goods 

          NIL  (2020-21) 
1,96,98,166 (2019-20) 

 
     7,84,530.50 (2020-21)          
              Nil      (2019-20) 
              Nil  

(b) Expenditure in foreign currency during the financial year on 
account of royalty, know-how, professional and consultation 
fees, interest and other matters; 

Nil  

(c) Total value if all imported raw materials, spare parts and 
components consumed during the financial year and the total 
value of all indigenous raw materials, spare parts and 
components similarly consumed and the percentage of each 
to the total consumption 

Nil  

(d) The amount remitted during the year in foreign currencies on 
account of dividends with a specific mention of the total 
number of non-resident shareholders, the total number of 
shares held by them on which the dividends were due and the 
year to which the dividends related; 

Nil  

(e) Earnings in foreign exchange classified under the following 
heads, namely:- 
i. Export of goods calculated on F.O.B. basis 

 
ii.  Royalty, know-how, professional and consultation fees, 
iii.  Interest and dividend 
iv. Other income, indicating the nature thereof 

 
 
1,94,04,645.79 (2020-21)                  
1,15,44,371.28 (2019-20) 

Nil  
Nil  
Nil  

 
NOTES: 
            1. During the year under review, Export Incentive is Rs. 1,57,205/-. 
            2. Advance of Rs. 13,84,124/- paid to Myande Group Co. Ltd. for Purchase of Machine. 
            3. We have booked Exchange Contract on 30.03.2021 of USD 5394000.00 
 
 

Place: INDORE                 RAMDAS GOYAL                         AMIT MODI       
Date:  13.08.2021                  CHAIRMAN                                    MANAGING DIRECTOR  
                                                    DIN: 00150037                                 DIN: 03124351 
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information and explanations given to us, the Funds has been used for the purpose it has been 
raised.   

 
xv.      According   to t h e i n f o r m a t i o n   and e x p l a n a t i o n s   given b y  t h e  

M a n a g e m e n t  the Company, the Company has not entered into a n y  non-cash 
transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to section 192 of the 
Companies Act 2013.  

 
xvi. According to the info rmat ion and Exp lanat ion g iven to us the provis io n o f 

section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 are not applicable to the Company. 
 
 
 

                         For, ABMS & Associates. 
           Chartered Accountants  

                                                       (Registration No. 030879C) 
        
          
 
                          (CA Atul Sharma) 
Place: Indore                     Partner 
Date:  June 28, 2021             M. No. 075615 

            UDIN: 21075615AAAABQ8582   
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accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  with Reference to 
these Financial Statements. 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to explanations gives to us , the Company has, 
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial statement 
of the company over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.  
 
 
                 For, ABMS & Associates. 
                                                        Chartered Accountants  

                                                   (Registration No. 030879C) 
        
          
 
                         (CA Atul Sharma) 
Place: Indore                    Partner 
Date:  June 28, 2021              M. No. 075615 
           UDIN: 21075615AAAABQ8582 
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(Rs. In Lakhs)

 Note As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

ASSETS
1 NON CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Property Plant and Equipment 4 7067.35 5531.35
(b) Capital Work in Progress 4 707.94 1824.69
(c ) Other Intangible Assets 4 1.20 2.05
(e) Financial Assets

(i) Other Financial Assets 5 125.52 136.55
(f) Non Current Tax Assets (Net) 6 5.10 5.10

7907.11 7499.74
2 CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Inventories 7 1527.49 2862.78
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Trade Recievables 8 2444.73 2740.44
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 5.98 9.22
Bank balances other than (ii) above
(iii) Fixed Deposits with Banks (Due to Mature within 12 months of the Reporting Date)

10 44.15 44.15

(iv) Other financial assets 11 107.46 47.66
(c) Other Current Assets 12 1283.90 788.99

5413.71 6493.24

TOTAL ASSETS 13320.82 13992.97

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(a) Equity Share Capital 13 700.08 609.32
(b) Other Equity 14 2077.92 1575.11

Total Equity 2777.99 2184.43
LIABILITIES :

1 NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial Liabilities : 

(i) Borrowings 15 4950.83 1439.08
(b ) Other Financial Liabilities : 16 914.35 11.63
( c ) Provisions 17 104.25 86.23
( d ) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 18 50.41 48.81

Total Non Current Liabilities 6019.84 1585.75

2 CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 385.73 661.61
(ii) Trade Payables 20

Total Outstanding dues of Micro & Small Enterprises 50.41 31.26
Total Outstanding Dues of Other than Micro & Small Enterprises 3473.29 9165.35

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 21 257.79 142.31
(b) Other Current Liabilities 22 337.59 211.14
( c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 23 18.18 11.14

Total Current Liabilities 4522.99 10222.80

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 13320.82 13992.97

1 - 50
The aqccompanying Notes form an Integral part of the Financial Statements
In Terms of our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board

For ABMS & Associates
Chartered Accountants Amit Modi Ramdas Goyal
FRN : 030879C Managing Director Director

Din : 03124351 Din : 00150037

Atul Sharma Ramesh Goyal Rohit Mangal
Partner                                                                                                    Director CFO
M.No. : 075615 Din : 00293615

Date : June 28, 2021. Saloni Naidu
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Place : Indore ACS No. : 59058

Tirupati Starch & Chemicals Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

Particulars

Significant Accounting Policies and Other Notes on Financial Statements

EQUITY :
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(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Note Year Ended March 31, 2021 Year Ended March 31, 2020

Revenue
Revenue from operations 24 19999.03 27163.44
Other Income 25 6.38 49.39

TOTAL INCOME 20005.41 27212.82

Expenses
Cost of Material Consumed 26 13202.49 22406.08
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work-in-Progress 27 1108.61 -639.91
Employee benefit expenses 28 779.95 686.64
Finance Cost 29 311.28 235.34
Depreciation and amortization expense 4 512.45 481.88
Excise duty and Tax
Other expenses 30 3984.37 3886.77

TOTAL EXPENSES 19899.15 27056.80

Profit / (Loss) before tax before exceptional items and tax 106.27 156.02
Exceptional items 31
Profit / (Loss) before tax 106.27 156.02
Tax Expenses Continued Operations
    Current Tax 20.80 28.35
     Earlier Years 0.75 4.40
    Deferred Tax 1.60 35.96
MAT Credit Entitlement -19.45 -27.69
Profit for the year 102.57 115.01

Profit / (Loss) for the year of Discontinued Operations 0.00 0.00
Tax Expenses Discontinued Operations
    Current Tax 0.00 0.00
    Deferred Tax 0.00 0.00

Profit / (Loss) for the year of Discontinued  Operations (after tax) 0.00 0.00

Profit / (Loss) for the period 102.57 115.01

Other Comprehensive Income 32
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.00 0.00
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.00 0.00
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 0.00 0.00
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 0.00 0.00
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (Net of Tax) 102.57 115.01
No. of Equity Shares 7000767 6093176
Earnings per Equity Share (Face value of Rs.10/- each) 37
 - Basic 1.66 1.89                                            
 - Diluted 1.66 1.89

Significant Accounting Policies and Other Notes on Financial Statements 1 to 50
The Accompanying notes are an intagral Part of the Financial Statement
As per our attached Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For ABMS & Associates
Chartered Accountants Amit Modi Ramdas Goyal
FRN : 030879C Managing Director Director

Din : 03124351 Din : 00150037

Atul Sharma
Partner                                                                                                    
M.No. : 075615 Ramesh Goyal Rohit Mangal

Director CFO
Din : 00293615

Saloni Naidu
Date : June 28, 2021 Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Place : Indore ACS No. : 59058

Tirupati Starch & Chemicals Limited
Statement of Profit and loss for the Year Ended March 31, 2021
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New Dt 050821

(Rs. In Lakhs)
S. 

NO. PARTICULARS 3/31/2021 3/31/2020

A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NET PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 106.27 156.02
ADJUSTMENTS FOR :
DEPRECIATION 512.45 481.88
FINANCE COST 311.28 235.34
INTEREST RECEIVED -9.19 -13.08
SUNDRY BALANCE W/OFF 0.00 -20.12
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 920.81 840.04
CHANGE IN TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 295.71 985.87
CHANGE IN TRADE PAYABLES -5672.90 1140.27
CHANGE IN INVENTORIES 1335.29 -1003.40
CHANGE IN NON FINANCIAL LIABILITIES & CONTRACT LIABILITIES 126.46 -0.74
CHANGE IN FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 88.98 -1035.53
CHANGE IN OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS -59.15 85.47
CHANGE IN OTHER CURRENT ASSETS -494.92 71.81
CHANGE IN OTHER LIABILITIES 18.02 51.97
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS -3441.70 1135.76

DIRECT TAX PAID 13.77 -21.61

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) -3455.47 1157.37
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING 

PURCHASE OF PROPERTY,PLANT & EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS -609.54 -895.86
INTEREST RECEIVED 8.87 13.08
NET CASH FLOW USED IN INVESTING ACITIVIES (B) -600.67 -878.54

C CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
PROCEEDS OF EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 90.76 0.00
PROCEEDS OF PREFERANCE SHARE CAPITAL 275.00 0.00
SECURITIES PREMIUM 184.24 0.00
CHANGE IN OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 0.00 0.00
CHANGE IN OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 11.03 0.00
INTEREST , COMMITMENT AND FINANCE CHARGES PAID -297.50 -221.93
INCREASE/ IN / (REPAYMENT) OF SHORT TERM BORROWINGS -249.38 -188.55
INCREASE/ IN / (REPAYMENT) OF LONG TERM BORROWINGS 3136.03 64.10
INCREASE/ IN / (REPAYMENT) OF DEPOSIT SECURITY DEPOSIT 902.72 57.13
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  [C] 4052.89 -289.25
NET INCREASED IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) -3.24 -10.43
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (OPENING BALANCE) 9.22 19.65
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CLOSING BALANACE) 5.98 9.22

5.98 9.22

AS AT March 31, 2021 AS AT March 31, 2020
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS :

A Balance with banks :
Current Accounts with Banks 2.31 1.32

B  Cash on Hand 3.68 7.91
Total 5.98 9.22

The accompanying Notes form an Integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our attached Report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board
For ABMS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 030879C Amit Modi Ramdas Goyal

Managing Director Director
Din : 03124351 Din : 00150037

Atul Sharma
Partner                                                                                                    Ramesh Goyal Rohit Mangal
M.No. : 075615 Director CFO

Din : 00293615

Date : June 28, 2021.
Saloni Naidu

Place : Indore Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
ACS No. : 59058

Tirupati Starch & Chemicals Limited

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2021

���������7�K�H���D�E�R�Y�H���&�D�V�K���I�O�R�Z���V�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W���K�D�V���E�H�H�Q���S�U�H�S�D�U�H�G���X�Q�G�H�U���W�K�H���³�,�Q�G�L�U�H�F�W���0�H�W�K�R�G�´���D�V���V�H�W���R�X�W���L�Q���,�Q�G�L�D�Q���$�F�F�R�X�Q�W�L�Q�J���6�W�D�Q�G�D�U�G���������³�6�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W���R�I���&�D�V�K���)�O�R�Z�V�´��

(2) Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment includes cash flows of capital work-in-progress.

COMPONENTS OF CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS :
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Tirupati Starch & Chemicals Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2021

A. Equity Share Capital (Rs. In Lakhs)

Changes in Equity share capital during the year 2020-21

B. Other Equity

 Share 
Application 
money 
pending 
allotment 

 Equity 
Component of 
Compound 
Financial 
Instruments 

 Preference 
Share Capital 
Redemption 
Reserves 

 Security 
Premium 

 Retained 
Earnings 

 Debt instruments 
through other 
comprehensive Income 

 Equity instruments 
through other 
comprehensive 
Income 

 
Revaluat
ion 
Surplus 

Total

 Balance at the 
beginning of 
reporting period as 
on 1st April 2020 

-              412.65                -                -                 1,162.46         1,575.11         

 Changes in
accounting
policy or prior
period errors 

-              -                      -                -                 -                  -                             -                       -       -                  

 Restated balance 
at the beginning of 
reporting period 

-              412.65                -                -                 1,162.46         1,575.11         

 Received duing 
the Current FY 
2021-22 (Ref Note 
No.14 b & 14 c) 

-              216.00                -                184.24           -                  -                             -                       -       400.24            

 Profit During The 
Periode As on 
March 31, 2021 
(Ref. Note No. 14 
A 

-              -                      -                -                 102.57            -                             -                       -       102.57            

 Dividends -              -                      -                -                 -                  -                             -                       -       -                  
 Transferred to 
Retained Earnings 

-                  

 Any other change -              -                      -                 -                  -                             -                       -       -                  
 Balance at the 
end of reporting 
period as on 
March 31, 2021 

-              628.65                -                184.24           1,265.03         -                             -                       -       2,077.92         

1 to 50
The accompanying Notes form an Integral part of the Financial Statements

For ABMS & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 030879C

Amit Modi Ramdas Goyal
Managing Director Director
Din : 03124351 Din : 00150037

Atul Sharma
Partner                                                                                                    
M.No. : 075615 Ramesh Goyal Rohit Mangal

Director CFO
Din : 00293615

Date : June 28, 2021.

Place : Indore Saloni Naidu
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
ACS No. : 59058

Significant Accounting Policies and Other Notes on Financial Statements

 Balance at the end of reporting period as 
on 31st March 2021 

609.32                                       700.08                                                       

Reserve and Surplus

31-Mar-21

 Balance at the beginning of 
reporting period as on 1st April 

2020 

90.76                                                                    
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NOTES 
FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 

 

1. Corporate Information : 
 

Tirupati Starch & Chemicals Limited is a Public Limited Company domicile in India and has 
also got listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange 1985. The company is engaged in Manufacturing 
of Starch, Dextrose Anhydrous and other Products. 

 
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING  POLICIES :   

A. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  : 
 

These financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (IND AS) notified under the companies (Indian Accounting Standard ) 
Rules 2015 as amended from time to time and presentation requirements of Division II of 
schedule III to the Companies Act 2013 (IndAS compliant Schedule III)  .The financial 
statements have been prepared on the going concern basis at historical cost convention on the 
accrual basis except for certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair values. 
These financial statements of the Company`s as per �,�Q�G�$�6�� �I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O�� �V�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W�V���� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V��
financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also its functional 
currency and all the values are rounded to the nearest lakhs except as 0 there wise indicated. 

 
B. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS,  ESTIMATES  AND ASSUMPTIONS :  

 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and 
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates 
�D�U�H�� �E�D�V�H�G�� �X�S�R�Q�� �P�D�Q�D�J�H�P�H�Q�W�¶�V�� �E�H�V�W�� �N�Q�R�Z�O�H�G�J�H�� �R�I�� �F�X�U�U�H�Q�W�� �H�Y�H�Q�W�V�� �D�Q�G�� �D�F�W�L�R�Q�V���� �W�K�H�� �G�L�I�I�H�U�H�Q�F�H��
between actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known / 
materialized.  
 

Current versus non-Current Classification: 
 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current 
classification based on operating cycle. 

An asset is treated as current when it is: 
 

a. Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 
b. Held primarily for the purpose of Trading. 
c. Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period,  

Or 
d. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 

for at least twelve months after the reporting period.  
All other assets are classified as non-current. 
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A liability is current when:- 
a. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle. 
b. It is held primarily for the purpose of Trading. 
c. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period. 

Or 
d. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period. 
All other Liabilities are classified as non-Current. 
Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities are classified as non-current Assets and 
Liabilities. 
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realization in cash and cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its 
operating cycle.  

 
3.1 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (PPE) : 

 
(i) Freehold land is carried of cost. All other item of Property, plant and equipment are stated at 

cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost 
directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use and 
which are not attributable to a particular assets have been allocated between Plant and 
Machineries and Building in the ratio of investment. 

(ii)  Subsequent �F�R�V�W�V�� �D�U�H�� �L�Q�F�O�X�G�H�G�� �L�Q�� �W�K�H�� �D�V�V�H�W�¶�V�� �F�D�U�U�\�L�Q�J�� �D�P�R�X�Q�W�� �R�U�� �U�H�F�R�J�Q�L�]�H�G�� �D�V�� �D�� �V�H�S�D�U�D�W�H��
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably. In the carrying amount 
of an item of PPE, the cost of replacing the part of such an item is recognized when that cost 
is incurred if the recognition criteria are met. The carrying amount of those parts that are 
replaced is derecognized in accordance with the derecognition principles. All other repairs 
and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in 
which they are incurred. 

(iii)  Expenses incurred relating to project, net of income earned during the project development 
stage prior to its intended use, are considered as pre - operative expenses and disclosed under 
Capital Work - in - Progress. 

(iv) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is providedon prorata basisusing straight line 
method. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule 
II to the Companies Act, 2013.Each part of an item of Property, Plant & Equipment with a 
cost that is significant in relation to total cost of the Machine is depreciated separately, if its 
useful life is different than the life of the Machine. 

(v) The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
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(vi) An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is 
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or 
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the 
income statement when the asset is derecognized. 

(i) Spare parts procured along with the Plant & Machinery or subsequently which meet the 
recognition criteria are capitalized and added in the carrying amount of such item. The 
carrying amount of those spare parts that are replaced is derecognized when no future 
economic benefits are expected from their use or upon disposal. Other machinery spares are 
t�U�H�D�W�H�G���D�V���³�V�W�R�U�H�V���	���V�S�D�U�H�V�´���I�R�U�P�L�Q�J���S�D�U�W���R�I���W�K�H���L�Q�Y�H�Q�W�R�U�\�� 

 
DEPRECIAITION : 

 
Property, plant and equipment / intangible assets are depreciated / amortized over their 
estimated useful lives, which are equal to the useful life prescribed under Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013 after taking into account estimated residual value. Management reviews 
the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the 
amount of depreciation / amortization to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful 
�O�L�Y�H�V���D�Q�G���U�H�V�L�G�X�D�O���Y�D�O�X�H�V���D�U�H���E�D�V�H�G���R�Q���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���K�L�V�W�R�U�L�F�D�O���H�[�S�H�U�L�H�Q�F�H���Z�L�W�K���V�L�P�L�O�D�U���D�V�V�H�W�V��
and take into account anticipated technological changes based on a technical evaluation by the 
management. The depreciation / amortization for future periods is revised if there are 
significant changes from previous estimates. 

 
INTANGIBLE ASSETS: 

 
Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes less accumulated 
amortization/ depletion and impairment loss if any. The cost comprises of purchase price, 
borrowing costs and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working 
condition for the intended use. 
Expenditure incurred on acquisition of intangible assets which are not ready to use at the 
reporting date is disclosed under �³�,�Q�W�D�Q�J�L�E�O�H �D�V�V�H�W�V���X�Q�G�H�U���G�H�Y�H�O�R�S�P�H�Q�W�´ 

 
Amortization  Method and Periods: 

 
Amortization is charged on a straight�± line basis over the estimated useful lives andthese 
intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible 
asset may be impaired. The estimated useful lives and amortization method are reviewed at the 
end of each annual reporting period with the effect of any changes in the estimate being 
accounted for a prospective basis. 

 
Computer �6�R�I�W�Z�D�U�H�¶�Vareamortized over an estimated useful life of 3 Years. 
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3.2 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS : 
 

3.2.1  IMPAIRMENT OF NON FINANCIAL ASSETS : 
 

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be 
impaired. If any indication exists,or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,the 
Company estimates �W�K�H���D�V�V�H�W�¶�V���U�H�F�R�Y�H�U�D�E�O�H���D�P�R�X�Q�W�����$�Q���D�V�V�H�W�¶�V���U�H�F�R�Y�H�U�D�E�O�H���D�P�R�X�Q�W���L�V���W�K�H���K�L�J�K�H�U��
�R�I���D�Q���D�V�V�H�W�¶�V���R�U���&�D�V�K���*�H�Q�H�U�D�W�L�Q�J���8�Q�L�W�V�����&�*�8�¶�V�����I�D�L�U���Y�D�O�X�H���O�H�V�V���F�R�V�W�V���R�I���G�L�V�S�R�V�D�O���D�Q�G���L�W�V���Y�D�O�X�H���L�Q��
use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that 
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying 
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and 
is written down to its recoverable amount. 

 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market 
transactions are taken into account, if no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate 
valuation model is used. 

3.2.2 IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS: 
 

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default 
and expected cash loss rates. The Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and 
�V�H�O�H�F�W�L�Q�J�� �W�K�H�� �L�Q�S�X�W�V�� �W�R�� �W�K�H�� �L�P�S�D�L�U�P�H�Q�W�� �F�D�O�F�X�O�D�W�L�R�Q���� �E�D�V�H�G�� �R�Q�� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �S�D�V�W�� �K�L�V�W�R�U�\���� �H�[�L�V�W�L�Q�J��
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. 

 
3.3       BORROWING  COST : 

 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying 
assets are capitalized as part of the cost of such assets upto the assets are substantially ready for 
their intended use or sale. 

 
The loan origination costs directly attributable to the acquisition of borrowings (e.g. loan 
processing fee, upfront fee) are amortized on the basis of the effective interest rate (EIR) 
method over the term of the loan. 
 
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their 
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. 
All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in 
which they are incurred. 

  
3.4  FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS AND FORWARD CONTRACTS : 

 
Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the �H�Q�W�L�W�\�� �R�S�H�U�D�W�H�V�� ���µ�W�K�H�� �I�X�Q�F�W�L�R�Q�D�O�� �F�X�U�U�H�Q�F�\�¶������The financial 
�V�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W�V�� �D�U�H�� �S�U�H�V�H�Q�W�H�G�� �L�Q�� �,�Q�G�L�D�Q�� �U�X�S�H�H�V�� ���µ�,�1�5�¶������ �Z�K�L�F�K�� �L�V�� �D�O�V�R�� �W�K�H�� �F�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �� �� �)�X�Q�F�W�L�R�Q�D�O��
currency. 
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Transactions and balances 
 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the company at their respective 
Functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. 

 
Monetary assets and liabilities Denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the 
functional Currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. 

 
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in 
the Statement of profit or loss with the exception of the following:- 

 
Exchange difference on foreign currency borrowings included in the borrowing cost when 
they regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings. 
Exchange differences on gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured 
at fair value which is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in 
fair value of the item (i.e. translation difference on items whose fair value gain or loss is 
recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss respectively) 

 

Conversion 
 

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items, 
which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported 
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 

 
3.5    EMPLOYEE BENEFITS : 

 

3.5.A Short term employee benefits 
 

Liabilities for wages and Salaries including non monetary benefits that are expected to be settled 
wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the 
related services are recognized in respect of employee service up to the end of the reporting 
period and are measured at the amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The 
Liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the Balance sheet. 
 

3.5.B Other Long Term employee Obligation Defined contribution plans 

a. Gratuity  

The Company has taken a Group Gratuity Policy for providing gratuity benefits under Group 
Gratuity Scheme from Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) and the premium paid to the 
LIC is charged to Profit & Loss A/c. The payment is made as per computation made by LIC 
on the basis of Actuarial Valuation.  

 

b. Provident Fund 

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution Scheme under 
which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or 
constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The company makes specified monthly 
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contribution towards government administered Provident fund scheme and also towards 
superannuation scheme. Obligations for contribution to defined contribution plans are 
recognized as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods which the related 
services are rendered by employees. 

 

3.6            REVENUE RECOGNITION :  
 

(i) Sale of Goods: 
 

The Company Manufactures of Maize Starch and Starch Products. 

Revenue has been recognized as & when all the performance obligations in the ordinary course 
of business are satisfied. The consideration of goods expected from customer reflects the 
promised goods actually transferred as per the normal terms and condition attached at the time 
of risk and rewards and customer obtains the control over the goods has been transferred. An 
entity does not deals in the packaged or combined goods and contract with customer need not 
raise any future obligation, an Entity deals only in a distinct goods and all the goods promised in 
the contract are a single and separate performance obligation at the time when customer obtains 
the control and possess all risk and rewards attached to the distinct goods has been transferred to 
the customer in an actual sense.  

 
At the inception Entity identifies and determines the distinct goods and fixed the consideration 
based on explicit and a single performance obligation i.e. no future obligation remains to be 
performed. There is no variable consideration and no any events occurred that cause 
consideration to be variable and hence no any question of determination transaction cost. 

Revenue recognized in the result shows the actual obligation performed and does not include 
such other activities to satisfy future obligation unless a goods or is actually transferred to the 
customer. 

 
An Entity does not involve in such contracts which identify the multiple performance 
obligations and therefore customer has no options to acquire an additional goods embedded to 
the original and distinct goods and accordingly management recognized the revenue based on 
the terms and conditions stipulated at the time of transfer the distinct and promised goods which 
has been delivered to the customers. 

 
An Entity does not enter in to a contract to install or maintenance or incentives or warranty or 
discount policy and therefore no future obligation need to be performed to adjust the 
consideration received and there is no created/occurred any deferred revenue.  

 
So based on the single performance obligation there are in the contract, price consideration 
recognized in the financial statement would not materially differ. If there is an uncertainty in 
recovery of the recognized revenue and does not arise the cash flow from such contracts with 
customers in this case management shall expediently justify their judgment, assumption and 
estimation taken while the standard set. 

(i) Export Benefits 
 

The amount available towards Export Benefits under duty exemption or any other Scheme 
during the years has been ascertained when the right of receive credit as per terms of the 
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scheme is established in respect of export made at fair value of consideration received or 
receivable.  

 

(ii)  Interest income from a financial asset is recognized using effective interest rate (EIR) 
method. 

(iii)  Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claim admitted / expected to be admitted to 
the extent that there is no uncertainty in receiving the claims. 

 

3.7            GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES: 
 

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable 
assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached 
conditions. 

 

Government grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred are recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss, as income or deduction from the relevant expense, on a systematic 
basis in the periods in which the expenses is recognized. 

 

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are recognized by 
deducting the same from carrying value of the related asset the grant is then recognized in profit 
or loss over the useful life of the depreciable asset by way of a reduced depreciation charge. 

 
3.8            INVENTORIES  : 

 

Inventories are valued as follows: 
 

SR.No. Name  Description 
1 Raw Materials, Dyes and 

Chemicals, Stores& Spares 
and Consumables  

Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is 
determined on a FIFO basis. Cost includes 
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and 
other costs include in bringing them to their present 
location and condition. Materials and other items held 
for use in the production of inventories are not written 
down below costs, if finished goods in which they will 
be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above 
cost. 

2 Work-in-Progress, Finished  
goods and Stock-in-Trade 

Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes 
direct materials, labour, and a proportion of 
manufacturing overheads and an appropriate share of 
fixed production overheads based on normal operating 
capacity.  

3 Waste Atnetrealizable value  
 

3.9 TRADE RECEIVABLES  : 
 

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the 
ordinary course of business. If the receivable is expected to be collected within a period of 12 
months or less from the reporting date (or in the normal operating cycle of the business, if longer), 
they are classified as current assets otherwise as non-current assets. 
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Trade receivables are measured at their transaction price unless it contains a significant financing 
component in accordance with IndAS 115 or pricing adjustments embedded in the contract. 

 
Loss allowance for expected life time credit loss is recognized on initial recognition. 

 
3.10 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CO NTINGENT ASSETS:  

 
The company recognizes a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event 
that probably requires an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect 
of which a reliable estimate can be made.A disclosure for a contingent liability made when there 
is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an 
outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation and the 
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure for contingent liability is 
made. 
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and commitments are reviewed at each 
Balance sheet date. 

 
3.11         FINANCIAL INTRUMENTS  : 

 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
Financial Liability or Equity Instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include 
derivative contracts such as foreign currency, foreign exchange forward contracts and interest 
rate swaps 
 

3.11.1 Financial Assets 
 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 
 

All financial assets are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are not 
at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. 
Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognized using trade date accounting. 

 
b) Subsequent measurement 

 

Financial assets carried at amortized cost 
 

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose 
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows(rather than to sell the 
instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realize its fair value changes)and the contractual 
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
 

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective 
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
 

A financial asset not classified as either amortized cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL. 
 
  C) Equity Investments 
 

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognized in 
Statement of Profit and Loss, except for those equity investments for which the Company has 
�H�O�H�F�W�H�G���W�R���S�U�H�V�H�Q�W���W�K�H���Y�D�O�X�H���F�K�D�Q�J�H�V���L�Q���µ�2�W�K�H�U���&�R�P�S�U�H�K�H�Q�V�L�Y�H���,�Q�F�R�P�H�¶�� 

 
d) Impairment of financial assets 

 
�
�,�Q���D�F�F�R�U�G�D�Q�F�H���Z�L�W�K���,�Q�G�$�6�������������W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\���X�V�H�V���µ�(�[�S�H�F�W�H�G���&�U�H�G�L�W���/�R�V�V�¶�����(�&�/�����P�R�G�H�O�����I�R�U�� 
Evaluating impairment of financial assets other than those measured at fair value through 
profitAnd loss (FVTPL). 

 
Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:  

 
�‡���7�K�H������-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default 
events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); 

 
or 

 
�‡�� �)�X�O�O�� �O�L�I�H�W�L�P�H�� �H�[�S�H�F�W�H�G�� �F�U�H�G�L�W�� �O�R�V�V�H�V�� ���H�[�S�H�F�W�H�G�� �F�U�H�G�L�W�� �O�R�V�V�H�V�� �W�K�D�W�� �U�H�V�X�O�W�� �I�U�R�P�� �D�O�O�� �S�R�V�V�L�E�O�H��
default events over the life of the financial instrument) 

 
�)�R�U���W�U�D�G�H���U�H�F�H�L�Y�D�E�O�H�V���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\���D�S�S�O�L�H�V���µ�V�L�P�S�O�L�I�L�H�G���D�S�S�U�R�D�F�K�¶���Z�K�L�F�K���U�H�T�X�L�U�H�V���H�[�S�H�F�W�H�G���O�L�I�H�W�L�P�H��
losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables. The Company uses 
historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At 
every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward 
looking estimates are analyzed.  

 
For other assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there 
is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk full 
lifetime ECL is used. 

 
3.11.2  Financial Liabilities  

 
3.11.2.1 Initial recognition and measurement 

  
All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly 
attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are directly recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss as finance cost. 
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3.11.2.2 Subsequent measurement 
 

Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade 
and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying 
amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 

 
(i) Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost 

 
After initial recognition, interest- bearing loans and borrowing are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit 
and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization 
process. 

 
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition 
and Fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as 
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

 
Trade Payables 
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to 
the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid 
within 30 to 120 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current 
liabilit ies unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are 
recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective 
interest method. 

 
(ii)     Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated 
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 

 
3.11.2.3 Derecognition of financial instruments 

 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 
the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for 
derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is 
derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged or cancelled or expires.   
 
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT  

The company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. 
Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
ordinary transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the assumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either: 
(i) In the principal market for asset or liability ,or 
(ii)  In the absence of a principal market in the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability. 
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The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company. 
The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability assuming that market participants act in their 
economic best interest. 
A fair value measurement of a non- financial asset takes into account a market participants 
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling 
to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value maximizing the use of relevant inputs and 
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All Assets and Liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
 
Level- 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical asset or   liabilities. 

 
Level- 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable 
 
Level- 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is unobservable. 

   
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on recurring basis , the 
company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to fair value 
measurement as a whole ) at the end of each reporting period. 
 
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and 
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level 
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

 
Leases 

The company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is or contains a Lease. That is if 
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. 
 
Company as a Lessee 

The company primarily lease consists of office premises which are in the nature of short-term 
leases and lease of low value assets (i.e. those leases payments on short that have a lease term of 
12 Months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).It also 
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption of leases that are considered to be 
low value. Lease payments on Short- term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized 
as expense in the statement of Profit & Loss on straight line basis over the term of lease. 
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3.12 EARNINGS PER SHARE: 
 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax attributable to 
equity shareholders, including deferred tax provision, by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose ofcalculating dilutedearnings per share,   
the net profit for the periodattributableto equity shareholdersandtheweighted average 
numberofsharesoutstandingduring theperiodisadjustedfor the effectsof alldilutivepotential 
equity shares. 

 
3.13 INCOME TAX : 

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in 
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in the other 
comprehensive income or in equity. In which case, the tax is also recognized in other 
comprehensive income or equity. 

3.13.1 Current Tax : 

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or 
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively 
enacted at the Balance sheet date. 

3.13.2 Deferred tax: 

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of 
taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying 
amount of deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. 

3.13.3 Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT)  

MAT credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence 
that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which 
the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset the said asset is created by way of 
credit to the statement of profit and loss and included in deferred tax assets. The company 
reviews the some at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT 
entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that company well 
pay normal income tax during the specified period. 

3.14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ; 
  

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an 
Original maturity of three months or less. 

           For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents is as defined above, net of  
           Outstanding bank overdrafts. 
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SEGMENT REPORTING 

The operating segment has been identified and reported taking into account its internal financial 
reporting, performance evaluation and organizational structure of its operations. Operating segment is 
reported in the manner evaluated by Board, considered as Chief operating Decision Maker under Ind AS 
�³���������2�S�H�U�D�W�L�Q�J���6�H�J�P�H�Q�W�V���´ 

 
Standards issued but not effective 
There are no standard that are issued but not yet effective on March 31, 2021. 
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Page 6

5        Other Financial Assets (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars  As at 

March 31, 2021 
 As at 

March 31, 2020 

Loans and Advances :
Security Deposit- Govt. Departments :
Govt. Departments 0.25 0.25
Others 125.27 136.30
Total 125.52 136.55

6        Non Current Tax Assets - Net
Particulars  As at 

March 31, 2021 
 As at 

March 31, 2020 
Income Tax (Net of Provision of Tax) 5.10 5.10
Total 5.10 5.10

7        Inventories
Particulars  As at 

March 31, 2021 
 As at 

March 31, 2020 
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value unless otherwise stated)
(Refer Accounting Policies - 
Raw Material 764.13 882.60
Work In Progress 183.60 596.03
Finished Goods 140.51 526.85
Stores And Spares 377.44 485.65
By Products 61.81 371.65

Total 1527.49 2,862.78                         

8        Trade Receivables
Particulars  As at 

March 31, 2021 
 As at 

March 31, 2020 
Unsecured, considered good
Trade receivables 2444.73 2740.44

Total 2444.73 2740.44

9        Cash & Cash Equivalents - 
Particulars  As at 

March 31, 2021 
 As at 

March 31, 2020 
Balances with Banks :-
Current Accounts 2.31 1.32

 Cash on Hand 3.68 7.91
 (A) 5.98 9.22

10       Bank Balances Other than Cash & Cash  Equivalents 
 Other Bank Balances* 
 Fixed Deposits With Banks  with original Maturity is more than 03 Months 44.15 44.15
 but less than 12 Months (Ref. Note Below) 

 (B) 44.15 44.15
Total (A+B) 50.13 53.37

Note : The deposits maintained by the Company with banks comprise of the time deposits.

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2021 

 As at 
March 31, 2020 

11      Other Current Financial Assets
(Carried at Amortised Cost, except otherwise stated)

Short Term Loans and advances -Loans to Employees 92.65 35.86
Accrued Interest On FDR 14.81 11.80

Total 107.46 47.66

 Notes : There are no restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prior period 

Note : (a) Trade receivables are usually non-interest bearing and are on trade terms of 30 to 90 days
(b) Neither trade nor other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly  with any other person, Nor any trade or 
other receivables are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Tirupati Starch & Chemicals Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the  Financial statements

Note : Contractual Claims and Other Receivable includes claims in accordance with contract with vendors

Notes : Invertories are Hypothecated with the bankers against working capital limits (Refer Note No. 15)
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12      Other Current Assets (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars  As at 

March 31, 2021 
 As at 

March 31, 2020 
Unsecured, considered good

Capital Advance 729.35 20.46
Government Claim Reveivables 314.36 513.41
Advance for Material & Services 240.19 255.12

Total 1283.90 788.99
13       Equity Share capital  (Amount in Rs.)

(a) Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised

8000000 Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value                           8,000,000 80000000.00 8,000,000         80,000,000            
(Previous year 8000000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each)
4250000 Preference shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value (See Note below)                           4,250,000 42500000.00 4,000,000         40,000,000            
(Previous year 4000000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each)

12,250,000                       122,500,000                  12,000,000       120,000,000          

Note:

Number Amount Number Amount
Issued

 7000767 Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value (Previous Year 6,093,176 Shares of 
Rs.10.00/- Par Value Each)   7,000,767                                              70,007,670 6,093,176         60,931,760            

4250000 Preference shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value( Previous Year 1,500,000 Shar of 
Rs.10.00/- Par Value Each) (See Note below) 4,250,000                                              42,500,000 1,500,000         15,000,000            
 Total                         11,250,767                    112,507,670           7,593,176              75,931,760 

Issued, Subscribed & fully paid up
 7000767 Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value (See Note below)                           7,000,767                      70,007,670 6,093,176         60,931,760            
(Previous year 6093176 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up)

7,000,767                         70,007,670                    6,093,176         60,931,760            

Note

(b)
Number Amount Number Amount

 Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year                           6,093,176                      60,931,760 6,093,176                      60,931,760 
Equity Share Issued during the Year
907591 Equity Share of Rs. 10/- Each 907,591                        9,075,910 0.00 0.00 
Total 7,000,767 70,007,670 6,093,176 60,931,760 
 Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the year                           7,000,767                      70,007,670           6,093,176              60,931,760 

( c) Rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to various classes of shares
Sl No.

01. Equity Shares

02. Preference shares

As at  March 31, 2021 As at  March 31, 2020

Rights, preferences and restrictions (including restrictions on distribution of 
dividends and repayment of capital) attached to the class of shares. 

The Company has only one class of equity having at par value Rs. 10.00 per share. 
Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held if the dividend proposed by 
the board of directors is subject to the approval of the share holders in ensuing 
Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of 
liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the 
company after distribution of all preference amount, in proportion to their 
shareholding.

The company has only one class of 0% Non Cummulative, non Convertable 
Redeemable Preference having at par value Rs. 10 per share. In the event of 
liquidation, The preference Shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets 
of the company after dstribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their 
shareholding.

Particulars

Tirupati Starch & Chemicals Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the  Financial statements

 Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 
As at  March 31, 2020As at  March 31, 2021

 Particulars 

Particulars
As at  March 31, 2020As at  March 31, 2021

 A) During the year the company has issued 9,07,591 Equity Shares of Rs.10.00/- Each at a Premium of Rs. 20.30/- aggregating to Rs.30.30/- to promotors on 
preferential basis  

B) During the year the company has issued 27,50,000 0% Non Cummulative Non Convertable Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.10.00/- Each to promotors, Promotor 
Group Other than their existing ratio for cash at Par by way of preferential allotment aggregating to Rs.2,75,00,000/-. Preferance Shares to be Redeemed with in next 20 
Years

 A) Pursuant to issue of Preference Share Capital Company has increased its Authorised Share Capital by 2,50,000 Shares 
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(d)

 Name of the Shareholder  

 No. of Shares 
held 

 % of Holding   No. of Shares 
held 

 % of 
Holding  

 Equity Shares 

Chanda Modi 494265 7.06% 494265 8.00%
Pramila Jajodia 308713 4.41% 308713 5.00%
Jatanbai Goyal 308646 4.41% 308646 5.00%

Total 1111624 15.08% 1111624 18.00%

14       Other Equity (Rs. In Lakhs)

 Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2021 

 As at 
March 31, 2020 

 (a) Retained Earnings                  1,265.03                 1,162.46 

 (b) Securities Premium                       184.24                            -   

 ( c) Equity Component of Compound Financial Instrument                      628.65                    412.65 
Total                  2,077.92                 1,575.11 

Discloser :
(a) Retailned Earnings

 Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2021 

 As at 
March 31, 2020 

Opening Balance                  1,162.46                 1,047.46 

Add: Net Profit For the Year                      102.57                    115.01 

Closing Balance                  1,265.03                 1,162.46 

Note :

(b)  Security Premium 

 Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2021 

 As at 
March 31, 2020 

 Opening Balance                              -                              -   
                     184.24                            -   

 Closing Balance                      184.24                            -   
Note :

( c)

 Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2021 

 As at 
March 31, 2020 

Opening Balance                      412.65                    412.65 

                     216.00                            -   

Closing Balance                      628.65                    412.65 

Note :

Tirupati Starch & Chemicals Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the  Financial statements

 Add: Proceeds Received from issue of Equity Shares (Ref, Note Below) 

Add: Proceeds from Preference Shares Issued During the Year (Ref. Note Below)

The equity portion as worked out under EIR method is related to issue of 275000, 0% Non Commulative, Non Convertible, Reedemable Prefrence shares of 
Rs. 10/- each during the year

Equity Component of Compound Financial Instruments

Retained Earnings are profits that the Company has earned till date. less transfer to General Reserve ,dividend or other distribution or transaction if any with 
shareholders.

 Shares held by the holding Company / Associate Company and shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company 
As at  March 31, 2021 As at  March 31, 2020

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares issue during the year is recognised in securities premium. The reserve can be utilised only 
for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2021 

 As at 
March 31, 2020 

15      Non - Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings
(Carried at Amortised Cost, except otherwise stated)

 (A) Secured Loan 
Rupee Term Loan From Banks :
 a. State Bank Of India (Covid 19 Emergency Credit Line by way of SLC Loan) 13.75 0.00
b.  State Bank Of India (Corporate Loan) 3900.00 0.00
Rupee Term Loan From Other NBFC Bank :

c. Hero FinCorp Limited 0.00 157.49
(B) Unsecured Loan - Long Term Borrowings :

(Carried at Amortised Cost, except otherwise stated)
a. From Promoters, Directors and  Relatives 850.98 1163.80
b. From Corporates Bodies 79.12 73.71
c. Debt Component of Preference Shares (Refer note Below ) 106.99 44.09
Note : (i)

This refers to the Debt portion of 1500000 Nos. 0% Non Cummulative non Convertible
Redeemable Preference shares  of Rs. 10/- each per share(to be redeemed within next 
 20 years) i.e. year 2033-34
Note : (ii)
This refers to the Debt portion of 2750000 Nos. 0% Non Cummulative non Convertible
Redeemable Preference shares  of Rs. 10/- each per share(to be redeemed within next 
 20 years) i.e. year 2040-41

4,950.83                           1,439.08                         

SECURITY DETAILS
PRIMARY FACILITY
(A) Secured Term Loan 
State Bank of India (Corporate Loan - 40.00 Cr)

State Bank of India (Covid 19 Emergency Credit Line by way of SLC Loan - 0.80 Cr)

 Hero FinCorp Limited

(B) Unsecured Loan 
From Promoters Directors & Their Relatives

Loan and advances from Body Corporates

Loan taken for long term purpose carrying 
Interest @ 12.50 P.A.

Interest Free Loan taken for long term purpose.

Note : There is no default, continuing or otherwise, as at the balance sheet date, in repayment of any of the above loans and Interest

Hypothecation of entire stocks of RM, FG, SIP, Stores & Spares, Packing Materials at the Company's factory premises situated at Survey no. 381/2, 
382/2, 396/3/2, 395/2/2, 403/2 Patwari Halka no. 55, situated at Indore Ahemdabad Road, Sejwaya, Ghatabillod, Dhar (M.P.) and the loan is 
further covered by the personal guarantee by the Directors. Loan is Repayable in 36 Quartly Installments starting from Year 2020-21 to Year 2029-30 
carrying rate of Interest @12.15% per annum.This  Loan is Optional conversion of Corporate Loan into FCNRBTL on fully hedged basis with two 
way swing facility with waiver of 0% hedging, subject to availabilty of FCNR (B) funds.

Hypothecation of entire stocks of RM, FG, SIP, Stores & Spares, Packing Materials at the Company's factory premises situated at Survey no. 381/2, 
382/2, 396/3/2, 395/2/2, 403/2 Patwari Halka no. 55, situated at Indore Ahemdabad Road, Sejwaya, Ghatabillod, Dhar (M.P.) and the loan is 
further covered by the personal guarantee by the Directors. Loan is Repayable in 18 equated monthly installments Installments of Rs. 4,44,444/- 
starting December 2020 after a moratorium period 6 months from the date of disbursement of the loan; Interest to be served as and when applied.

Company's land situated at Survey no. 403/2 Patwari Halka no. 55, situated at Indore Ahemdabad Road, Sejwaya, Ghatabillod, Dhar (M.P.).  
Repayment in 60 equated monthly installments Installments of Rs. 670267/- 

Tirupati Starch & Chemicals Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the  Financial statements
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16      Non Current Liabilities
Particulars  As at 

March 31, 2021 
 As at 

March 31, 2020 
(A) Other Long Term Liabilities :

Security Deposits from Dealers and Customers 91.44 1.16
Total (A) 91.44 1.16

17      (B) Long Term Provision :
For Employees LIC Group Gratuty (Refer Note No.46) 104.25 86.23

Total (B) 104.25 86.23

Total (A+B) 1018.60 97.86
18      Deferred Tax Assets

Component of Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets)
 As at 

March 31, 2021 
 As at 

March 31, 2020 

Accelerated Depreciation for Tax purposes (707.40)                             (636.89)                          
Deferred Tax Asset Unrealized Carried Forward Losses 415.10                                    367.11                                 

Expenses allowable on payment basis 45.39                                      30.47                                   

MAT credit entitlement as at end of the year 215.09                                    189.89                                 

Other Items giving rise to temporary differences (18.58)                               0.62                               
Total (50.41)                               (48.81)                            

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2021 

 As at 
March 31, 2020 

19      Short Term Borrowings
(Carried at Amortised Cost, except otherwise stated)

Loans Repayable on Demand from Banks
 Secured :
Working Capital Loan
Cash Credit Limit ( State Bank of India ) Ref. Note no. (i) below 398.76 660.37
Overdraft Limit (M.P. Gramin Bank) Ref. Note no. (ii) below -13.03 1.24
Note : There is no default, as at the balance sheet date, in repayment of any of above Loans

Total 385.73 661.61

20      Trade Payables
Particulars  As at 

March 31, 2021 
 As at 

March 31, 2020 
Total Outstanding Dues of Micro and Small Enterprises 50.41 31.26
Total Outstanding Dues of Related Parties 16.17 0.00

Total Outstanding Dues of Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 3457.12 9165.35
3523.70 9196.60

 As at 
March 31, 2021 

 As at 
March 31, 2020 

 Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier covered under 
MSMED Act : 

Principal 50.41                                31.26                             
Interest 0 0

 The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of the MSMED Act, 2006 along 
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each 
accounting year 0 0
 The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have 
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest 
specified under MSMED Act, 2006 0 0
 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. 

0 0
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until 
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the 
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

0 0
 The total dues of Micro and Small Enterprises which were outstanding for more than stipulated 
period are ` Nil (March 31, 2020 : ` Nil) 

Tirupati Starch & Chemicals Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the  Financial statements

Note No. (ii) : Over Draft Facility with M.P.Gramin Bank is Secured by FDR's Rs. 5,00,000/- & carry interest @ 7.65% P.A.

Note : (a) The amounts are unsecured and non interest-bearing and are usually paid within 30 to 120 days of recognition

(b) Information as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for the year 
ended March 31, 2021 is given below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available 
with the company.

Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) in relation to :

Note : Effective tax rate has been calculated on Profit before Tax

Note No. (i) : Hypothecation of entire stocks of RM, FG, SIP, Stores & Spares, Packing Materials at the Company's factory premises situated at Survey no. 381/2, 382/2, 396/3/2, 
395/2/2, 403/2 Patwari Halka no. 55, situated at Indore Ahemdabad Road, Sejwaya, Ghatabillod, Dhar (M.P.) and the loan is further covered by the personal guarantee by the 
Directors.
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21      Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2021 

 As at 
March 31, 2020 

Other Payables :

Current maturities of Long term Loan (Refer Note No. 15(a) & (b)) 128.33 101.84
Creditor for Capital Goods 129.46 40.47

257.79 142.31

22      Other Current Liabilities

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2021 

 As at 
March 31, 2020 

Advance from Customers 47.85 54.71
Others :

Goods and Service tax Payable 138.62 118.14
Other Statutory Dues Payable 151.12 38.29

 Total 337.59 211.14

23      Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2021 

 As at 
March 31, 2020 

Income Tax (Net of Provision of Tax) 18.18 11.14
Total 18.18 11.14

Tirupati Starch & Chemicals Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the  Financial statements

Sundry Debitors (Credit Balance)
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Tirupati Starch & Chemicals Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2021

24 Revenue from operations

Particulars
Year Ended March 31, 

2021
Year Ended March 

31, 2020
Revenue from Contract with Customers :

A Sale of Products : 19997.46 27162.18
B.Other Opretive Incomes :

Export Incentive (Custom) 1.57 1.25
Total Reveue from Operations 19999.03 27163.44

25 Other Income 

Particulars
Year Ended March 31, 

2021
Year Ended March 

31, 2020

Interest Received from Bank Deposits & Electricity Deposits 9.19 13.08

Miscellaneous Income -2.81 36.30
Total 6.38 49.39

26 Cost of Material Consumed

Particulars
Year Ended March 31, 

2021
Year Ended March 

31, 2020
(Maize & DMH)

Opening Stock 882.60 511.78

Add: Purchases and Incidental Expenses 13084.03 22776.89

13966.62 23288.67
Less: 

          Closing stock 764.13 882.60

764.13 882.60

Total 13202.49 22406.08

27 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade

Particulars
Year Ended March 31, 

2021
Year Ended March 

31, 2020

Inventories at the Begning of the year

Finished Goods 526.85 342.01

Work-In-Progress 596.03 388.69

By-Products 371.65 123.91

1494.53 854.62
Inventories at the End of the year

Finished Goods 140.51 526.85

Work-In-Progress 183.60 596.03

By-Products 61.81 371.65

385.92 1494.53
(Increase)/Decrease In Inventories

Finished Goods 386.34 -184.84

Work-In-Progress 412.43 -207.33

By-Products 309.84 -247.74

Net (Increase)/ Decrease in stock of finished goods 1108.61 -639.91
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Tirupati Starch & Chemicals Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2021

28 Employee Benefits Expense

Particulars
Year Ended March 31, 

2021
Year Ended March 

31, 2020
Salaries, Wages, Bonus & Other Benefits 708.59 532.38

Contribution To Provident And Other Fund 47.81 59.26

Staff Welfare Expenses 4.81 38.02

LIC Group Gratuity Insurance Scheme Employees 18.74 56.97
Total 779.95 686.64

29 Finance costs

Particulars
Year Ended March 31, 

2021
Year Ended March 

31, 2020
Interest to Bank on CCL 127.69 50.75

Interest on Term Loan 13.30 8.56

Interest to others -Directors & Promotors 163.47 170.39

Bank Charges 6.82 5.64
Total 311.28 235.34

30 Other Expenses

Particulars
Year Ended March 31, 

2021
Year Ended March 

31, 2020
Advertisement 0.80 0.35

Auditors Remuneration (See note no.34) 3.64 3.82

Brokerage & Commission On Sales 67.19 105.44

Cash Discounts And Claims 24.24 19.66

Consumption Of Stores & Spares 635.98 748.08

Donation 0.00 0.96

Factory Overhead 27.43 88.37

Freight & Forwarding 313.14 307.70

Insurance (Net ) -5.29 -20.52

Job work 3.33 2.26

Legal & Professional Charges 43.59 80.54

Postage, Telegram, Telephone 5.34 5.00

Power, Coal & Fuel Consumption 2587.53 2252.81

Rates & Taxes 8.33 16.13

Rent & Hire Charges 7.20 8.38

Repairs & Maintenance - Building, Plant & Machinery 54.50 62.23

Repairs & Maintenance Others 2.67 2.91

Stationery And Printing Expenses 3.95 3.11

Travelling & Conveyance 4.37 5.62

Vehicle Expenses 5.68 8.15

Other Expenses 190.76 185.78
Total 3984.37 3886.77
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Tirupati Starch & Chemicals Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2021
Exceptional Items

31

Particulars
Year Ended March 

31, 2021
Year Ended March 

31, 2020
Exceptional Item 0.00 0.00

Total 0.00 0.00

32 Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars
Year Ended March 

31, 2021
Year Ended March 

31, 2020
(A) Items that will not be reclassified into profit or loss

 (i) Investments in equity instruments measured at fair value 0.00 0.00
(ii)Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Total (A) 0.00 0.00

(B) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Total (B) 0.00 0.00
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M/S TIRUPATI STARCH &  CHEMICALS LTD.,  
12, AGRAWAL NAGAR MAIN ROAD,INDORE  

 

1 
 

OTHER NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 
 

33. Contingent Liability and contingencies not provided for to the extent : 
 

(i) Disputed Tax Liabilities regarding demand cases pending against the company from 
Custom & Central Excise Department: 

 
a. The Company have show cause notices No. DGCEI/AZU/36-13/2005/3352 dt. 07.09.2005 & 

Notice No. V(35)15-1/2006/Adj.I/5199 dt. 03.04.2006 from the Custom & Central Excise 
Department for wrong classification of maize starch powder demand raised of Rs. 9,34,36,459/- 
upto 31.03.2006. But in similar cases �W�K�H�� �+�R�Q�¶�E�O�H�� �&�X�V�W�R�P�V���� �(�[�F�L�V�H�� �	�� �6�H�U�Y�L�F�H�� �7�D�[�� �$�S�S�H�O�O�D�W�H��
Tribunal Principal Bench New Delhi vide their order dated 21.11.2013 had rejected the 
Department Appeal being it is settled that maize starch powder is classifiable as plain starch 
falling. Hence the company has no demand pending for payment despite the fact the Central 
Excise Department has gone to higher Court. The company has already filed application for set-
a-side the demand raised upto 31.12.2014 and accordingly no provision has been made for any 
liability of said demands on the basis of advice by its legal counsel that the appeals will be decided in 
favor of the company. 

 
b. The assessment of Entry Tax, Madhya Pradesh Commercial Tax & Central Sales Tax/VAT for the 

different years are following demands and are disputed : 

 
 

 
 
The Company has disputed the demand and preferred appeal before Appellate Authorities. No provision has 
been made for any liability of said demands on the basis of advice by its legal counsel that the appeals will be 
decided in favor of the company. 

 
(ii) The Company has Issued Following Bank Guarantee in the nature of Financial Guarantees in favour of  : 
           Amount (in Rs.) 

Sr. No. Particulars 2020-21 2019-20 
01 Western Coal Filed Ltd., Nagpur 33,60,000/- 33,60,000/- 
02 KrishiUpajMandiSamiti 5,00,000/ 5,00,000/- 

 
(iii) Claims/Suits filed against the company not acknowledged as debt:- 

 
(a) Court Decree in the case of Smt. ShardaBai for Rs. 2,53,852/- before Hon�¶ble MP High Court, 

Indore out of which Rs. 1,28,000/- has been deposited & kept in advance as appeal is pending 
against the Court Decree and the appeal is likely to be decided in favor of the Company. 

  
(b) Mandi tax has been recognized as expensesupto June, 2013, which has been given to Mandi 

Authority and keep in separate account in pursuance of Court Order. In case the amount is 
refunded the same will be considered as Income in the year of its receipt. However from July 
2013, Mandi Tax has not been deposited �L�Q���Y�L�H�Z���R�I���G�H�F�L�V�L�R�Q���R�I���+�R�Q�¶�E�O�H���+�L�J�K���&�R�X�U�W���R�I���0�D�G�K�\�D��
Pradesh, in the matter of Writ Petition No. 14227/2010 Dated 05/07/2013. 

 

Particulars 2014-15 2016-17 
MPCT/VAT Rs. 89595 - 
Central Sales Tax - Rs. 183760 
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Commitments: 
a. Estimated amount of capital contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for (Net of Advances) 

Rs. 6,30,00,000/- (Previous Year 5,00,00,000/-) 
 

34. �7�K�H���$�X�G�L�W�R�U�V�¶���5�H�P�X�Q�H�U�D�W�L�R�Q���G�X�U�L�Q�J���W�K�H���\�H�D�U���L�V���D�V���X�Q�G�H�U: 
 

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20 
Audit Fees&, Tax Audit 2,93,125/- 2,93,125/- 
Certification Matters     70,875/-     88,375/- 
Total (in Rs.)  3,64,000/- 3,81,500/- 

  
35. Managerial Remuneration includes: 
 

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20 
Remuneration 73,65,000/- 69,10,000/- 
Perquisites  17,52,596/- Nil  
Contribution to PF & other funds 8,83,800/- 8,29,200/- 
Total 1,00,01,396/- 77,39,200/- 

 
36. Corporate Social Responsibility: 

 

The company has adopted good practices under its Code of Conduct with respect to its 
responsibility towards society. With regard to, applicability of Sec 135 of the Companies Act 2013 
for Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), the company is neither required to constitute the 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee nor is required to contribute any amount on Corporate 
Social Responsibility Initiatives as the said provisions are not applicable to the company. 

 

37. Earnings per share (EPS): 
 

 

 

38. Segment Reporting: 
 

The Company has only a single reportable Segment in terms of the requirements of IndAS-108. There 
are no customers having revenues exceeding 10% of Total Revenues. 

39. During the year, the company has incurred following Pre-operative Expenses (Pending Capitalization ) which 
directly relatable to the Cost of Property, Plant and Equipment being expenses related to project and 
development of Property, Plant and Equipment therefore the same has been disclosed under �µCapital Work in 
Progress�¶ (Note No.04) 

 

 

Particulars For the Year 
Ended 
31/03/2021 

For the Year 
Ended 
31/03/2020 

Profit/ (loss) available for appropriation As per Profit & Loss A/c (Rs.) 10256558 11500843 
Weighted average number of equity Shares  6168809 6093176 
Nominal value per equity shares (Rs.) 10.00 10.00 
Basic and Diluted EPS (Rs.) 1.66 1.89 
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Particulars As At 
March 31, 2021 

During the 
 F.Y. 2020-2021 

As At 
March 31,2020 

During the 
F.Y. 2019-2020 

Cost of Material 
Consumed 

68622769 103174898 145070457.40 68816562.87 

Employee benefit 
Expenses 

Nil  Nil  17756638.00 12281638.00 

Other Expenses 2171599 13211089 19642344.15 7006176.68 
Total 70794367 116385987 182469439.55 88104377.55 

 
40. Related Party Disclosure (As per Ind As-24): 

 

The related parties as per the terms of Ind AS-�������� �³�5�H�O�D�W�H�G�� �3�D�U�W�\�� �'�L�V�F�O�R�V�X�U�H�V�´����Companies Act 2013 
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule 2015 (as amended), as disclosed below : 

 

a) Key Management personnel : 
 

Sr. No. Name of Directors   Designation  
1 Shri RamdasGoyal Chairman &Whole Time Director 
2 Shri Amit Modi Managing Director 
3 Shri Ramesh Chandra Goyal Whole time Director 
4 Shri Prakash Chand Bafna Whole time Director 
5 Shri Yogesh Kumar Agrawal Whole time Director (From Jan. 1, 

2021) 
6 Shri RohitMangal Chief Financial Officer 
7 Ms. PriyankaSengar(upto Sep. 30, 

2020) 
Company Secretary& Compliance 
Officer 

8 Ms. Saloni Naidu (From Oct. 1, 2020 
to Till) 

Company Secretary& Compliance 
Officer 

 

b) Enterprises over which Key management personnel or their relatives have significant influence: 
 

Sr. No. Particulars Sr . No. Particulars 
1 Pradeep S/o Prakash Bafna 10 RakhiW/o Pradeep Bafna 
2 Sachin S/o Prakash Bafna 11 Dr. DamodarModi (HUF) 
3 VidheeBafna W/o SachinBafna 12 Jatan W/o RamdasGoyal 
4 ManoramaModi D/o Shiv DayalGoyal 13 RamdasGoyal (HUF) 
5 Shobha Devi W/o Ramesh Chandra Goyal 14 SushilaBafna 
6 Rohit S/o Late Om Prakash Mangal 15 Hiramani Gupta 
7 Chanda W/o Late Dr. DamodarModi 16 ShyamSundarGoyal 
8 Neena W/o Amit Modi 17 Lokesh S/o RamdasGoyal 
9 Aditi  Agrawal W/o Nikhar Agrawal 18 B. K. Agrawal Merchant Pvt. Ltd., 
  19 Dexterous Products Pvt. Ltd. 

 
c) Non-Executive Directors: 

 

Sr. No. Particulars Sr . No. Particulars 
1 Smt. PramilaJajodiya 2 Smt. ShashikalaMangal 
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d) Independent Directors : 
 

Sr. No. Name of Directors   Designation  
1 Shri Ashish Agrawal Non-Executive & Independent Director 
2 Shri Vinod Kumar Garg Non-Executive & Independent Director 
3 Shri Nitin Kumar Gupta Non-Executive & Independent Director 
4 Shri Ramesh Agrawal Non-Executive & Independent Director 

 

e) Transaction during the Year : 
 

(i) Sale of Products : 
 

Sr. No. Enterprises in which Directors are 
Interested 

Current Year  Previous Year 

1 B. K. Agrawal Merchant Pvt. Ltd., 64,47,859/- 3,50,97,689/- 
2 Dexterous Products Pvt. Ltd. Nil  20,580/- 
 Total 64,47,859/-                 3,51,18,269/- 

(ii)  Purchase of Material : 
 

Sr. No. Enterprises in which Directors are 
Interested 

Current Year  Previous Year 

1 B. K. Agrawal Merchant Pvt. Ltd., 16,16,999/- Nil  
 Total 16,16,999/- Nil  
(iii)  Interest on Unsecured Loans to Enterprises in which  Directors are interested: 

 

Sr. No. Enterprises in which Directors are 
Interested 

Current Year  Previous Year 

1 RamdasGoyal HUF 9,99,404.72/- 9,22,902.15/- 
2 Dr. Damodar Das Modi HUF 8,50,562.56/- 7,85,454.44/- 
 Total 18,49,967.28/- 17,08,356.59/- 

 
 

(iv) Interest on Unsecured Loans to Key Management personnel : 
 

Sr. No. Key Management personnel  Current Year  Previous Year 
1 Directors 38,65,307.28/- 13,92,034.38/- 
2 RohitMangal, CFO 2,28,960.87/- 2,15,641.11/- 
 Total 40,94,268.15/- 16,07,675.49/- 

 
 

(v) Interest on Unsecured Loans to Relative/Interested Party of Key Managerial Personnel : 
 

Sr. No. Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 
1 Relatives/Related Party 91,06,800.90/- 89,83,217.50/- 
 Total 91,06,800.90/- 89,83,217.50/- 
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(vi) Managerial Remuneration : 
 

Particulars Current Year  Previous Year 
Key Management Personnel   
Salaries, Wages, Bonus and other benefits 80,60,548/- 88,11,502/- 
Contribution towards PF, Family Pension 
and ESIC 

8,83,800/- 10,56,500/- 

KMP Relatives Personnel   
Pradeep Bafna 12,00,000/- 4,50,000/- 
Krishna Kumar Jajodiya 17,83,087/- 0 

Total 1,19,27,435/-                1,03,18,002/- 
 

(vii)  Balance at the Year End : (Amount Payables) 
 

Particulars As At March 31, 2021 As At March 31, 2020 
Directors, Promoters and Relatives  1,51,41,137.84/- 1,46,41,137.29/- 
Enterprises in which �.�0�3�¶�V��are interested 16,16,999.00/- 15,00,000.00/- 

Total 1,67,58,136.84/- 1,61,41,137.29/- 

 
41. Financial Instruments �± Fair values and risk management 

 
 

�6�H�W���R�X�W���E�H�O�R�Z�����L�V���D���F�R�P�S�D�U�L�V�R�Q���E�\���F�O�D�V�V���R�I���W�K�H���F�D�U�U�\�L�Q�J���D�P�R�X�Q�W���D�Q�G���I�D�L�U���Y�D�O�X�H���R�I���W�K�H���������F�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V��
financial instruments: 
 
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortizedcost: 

 

                                                                           Carrying Value                         Fair Value 
Particulars As at March 

31,2021 
As at March 
31,2020 

As at March 
31,2021 

As at March 
31,2020 

Financial Assets by Category     
Financial assets valued at amortized cost    
Cash and Bank Balances (Current ) 5,98,247/- 9,22,165/- 5,98,247/- 9,22,165/- 
Trade Receivables 2,44,45,72,973/- 27,40,43,880/- 2,44,45,72,973/- 27,40,43,880/- 
Other Bank Balances (Non-Current ) 44,15,000/- 44,15,000/- 44,15,000/- 44,15,000/- 
Other Financial assets (Current ) 1,07,45,712/- 47,66,044/- 1,07,45,712/- 47,66,044/- 

 
  Carrying Value                                Fair Value 

Particulars As at March 
31,2021 

As at March 
31,2020 

As at March 
31,2021 

As at March 
31, 2020 

Financial Liabilities valued at 
amortized cost 

    

Trade Payables 35,23,69,937/- 91,96,60,254/- 35,23,69,937/- 91,96,60,254/- 
Borrowings (Current ) 3,85,72,880/- 6,61,60,857/- 3,85,72,880/- 6,61,60,857/- 
Borrowings (non-Current ) 49,50,83,224/- 14,39,08,415/- 49,50,83,224/- 14,39,08,415/- 
Other Financial Liabilities (Non �±
Current) 

9,14,35,289/- 11,63,069/- 9,14,35,289/- 11,63,069/- 

Other financial Liabilities (Current) 2,57,78,907/- 1,42,31,092/- 2,57,78,907/- 1,42,31,092/- 
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The Management assessed that Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade Receivable, Trade Payable, 
Other Current financial assets and other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying 
amounts largely due to the Short-Term maturities of these instruments. 

The Fair value of the other financial asset and liabilities is included at the amount at which the 
instrument could be exchanged in a Current transaction between willing parties other than forced 
or Liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value:- 

 

1) The Fair value of Loans from Banks, other non-current financial assets and other non-
current liabilities is estimated by discounting future Cash flows using rates currently 
available for debt or similar items, Credit Risk and remaining maturities. The Valuation 
requires management to use unobservable inputs in the model, of which the significant 
unobservable inputs are disclosed in the Table below. Management regularly assesses a 
range of reasonably possible alternatives for those significant unobservable inputs and 
determines their impact on the total fair value. 

 

2) �7�K�H�� �)�D�L�U�� �Y�D�O�X�H�� �R�I�� �W�K�H�� �F�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �L�Q�W�H�U�H�V�W�� �E�H�D�U�L�Q�J�� �E�R�U�U�R�Z�L�Q�J�V�� �D�U�H�� �G�H�W�H�U�P�L�Q�H�G�� �E�\�� �X�V�L�Q�J��
�H�I�I�H�F�W�L�Y�H���L�Q�W�H�U�H�V�W���U�D�W�H�����(�,�5�����P�H�W�K�R�G���X�V�L�Q�J���G�L�V�F�R�X�Q�W���U�D�W�H���W�K�D�W���U�H�I�O�H�F�W���W�K�H���L�V�V�X�H�U�¶�V���E�R�U�U�R�Z�L�Q�J��
rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance risk as at 31st March 
.2020 was assessed to be insignificant. 

 

3) Long Term Receivables/payables are evaluated by the company based on parameters such 
as interest rate, riskfactors, and individual credit worthiness of the counter party and the 
risk characteristics of the financial project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken 
into account for the expected credit losses of these receivables. 

 

4) Fair Value hierarchy 
 

The company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of 
financial instruments by valuation technique: 

 

Level 1:Quoted (Unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or Liabilities 

Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded 
fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly 

Level 3: Techniques that use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value 
that are not based on observable market data 
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Quantitative disclosure of Fair Value measurement hierarchy for asset as on March 31, 2021 
 

CARRY VALUE       FAIR VALUE  
Particulars March 31,2021 Level 1 Level 

2 
Level 3 

Assets carried at amortized cost 
for which 
Fair value are disclosed 

    

Cash and Cash balances (Current) 5,98,247/- 5,98,247/-     -          - 
Other Bank Balance (Non-Current) 44,15,000/- 44,15,000/- - - 
Other Financial Assets(Non-current ) 1,25,51,848/-     -     -  1,25,51,848/- 
Other Financial assets (Current ) 1,07,45,712/-     -     - 1,07,45,712/- 
Trade Receivables 2,44,45,72,973/-     -     - 2,44,45,72,973/- 
Liabilities carried at amortized 
cost for which 
Fair value are disclosed 

    

Trade Payables 35,23,69,937/-     -     - 35,23,69,937/- 
Borrowings (Non-Current) 49,50,83,224/-   49,50,83,224/- 
Borrowings (Current) 3,85,72,880/-   3,85,72,880/- 
Other Financial liabilities (non-
Current ) 

9,14,35,289/-  -     - 9,14,35,289/- 

Other financial liabilities (Current) 2,57,78,907/-     -     - 2,57,78,907/- 
 

 
Quantitative disclosure of Fair Value measurement hierarchy for asset as on March 31,2020 

 
 

CARRY VALUE       FAIR VALUE  
Particulars March 31,2020 Level 1 Level 

2 
Level 3 

Assets carried at mortised cost for 
which 
Fair value are disclosed 

    

Cash and Cash balances (Current) 9,22,165/- 9,22,165/-     -     - 
Other Bank Balance (Non-Current) 44,15,000/- 44,15,000/-     -     - 
Other Financial Assets (Non-current 
) 

1,36,54,934/-     -     - 1,36,54,934/- 

Other Financial assets (Current ) 47,66,044/-     -     - 47,66,044/- 
Trade Receivables 27,40,43,880/-     -     - 27,40,43,880/- 
Liabilities carried at amortized 
cost for whichFair value are 
disclosed 

    

Trade Payables 91,96,60,254/-     -     - 91,96,60,254/- 
Borrowings (Non-Current) 14,39,08,415/-     -     - 14,39,08,415/- 
Borrowings (Current) 6,61,60,857/-     -     - 6,61,60,857/- 
Other Financial liabilities (Non-
Current ) 

11,63,069/-     -     - 11,63,069/- 

Other financial liabilities (Current) 1,42,31,092/-     -     - 1,42,31,092/- 
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Financial risk management Objectives and Policies  
 

The company principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other 
payables. The main purpose of these �I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O�� �O�L�D�E�L�O�L�W�L�H�V�� �L�V�� �W�R�� �I�L�Q�D�Q�F�H�� �W�K�H�� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V��
�R�S�H�U�D�W�L�R�Q�V�����7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�µ�V���S�U�L�Q�F�L�S�D�O���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���D�V�V�H�W�V���L�Q�F�O�X�G�H���W�U�D�G�H���D�Q�G���R�W�K�H�U���U�H�F�H�L�Y�D�E�O�H�V���D�Q�G��
cash and cash equivalents that are derived directly from its operations. 

 
�7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���U�L�V�N��management is an internal part of how to plan and execute its 
business strategies. The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. 

 
The company senior management overseas the management of these risks. The senior 
Professionals working to manage the financial risks and the appropriate financial risk 
governance framework for the company are accountable to the Board of Directors and Audit 
�&�R�P�P�L�W�W�H�H���� �7�K�L�V�� �S�U�R�F�H�V�V�� �S�U�R�Y�L�G�H�G�� �D�V�V�X�U�D�Q�F�H�� �W�K�H�� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �V�H�Q�L�R�U�� �P�D�Q�D�J�H�P�H�Q�W�� �W�K�D�W�� �W�K�H��
�&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �I�L�Q�D�Q�Fial risk-taking activities are governed by appropriate policies and 
procedures and that financial risk are identified, measured and managed in accordance with 
Company policies and Company risk objectives. In the event of crises caused due to 
external facto�U�V���V�X�F�K���D�V���F�D�X�V�H�G���E�\���U�H�F�H�Q�W���S�D�Q�G�H�P�L�F���³�&�2�9�,�'�������´���W�K�H���P�D�Q�D�J�H�P�H�Q�W���D�V�V�H�V�V�H�V��
the recoverability of its assets, maturity of its liabilities to factor it in cash flow forecast to 
ensure there is enough liquidity in these situations through internal and external source of 
funds. These forecast and assumptions are reviewed by board of directors. 

 
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which 
are summarized as below 

 
 -Credit risk; 
 -liquidity risk and 
 -Market risk 

 

 i.     Risk management framework 
 

�7�K�H�� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �E�R�D�U�G�� �R�I�� �G�L�U�H�F�W�R�U�V�� �K�D�V�� �R�Y�H�U�D�O�O�� �U�H�V�S�R�Q�V�L�E�L�O�L�W�\�� �I�R�U�� �H�V�W�D�E�O�L�V�K�P�H�Q�W�� �D�Q�G��
�2�Y�H�U�V�L�J�K�W�� �R�I�� �W�K�H�� �� �� �F�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �U�L�V�N�� �P�D�Q�D�J�H�P�H�Q�W�� �I�U�D�P�H�Z�R�U�N���� �7�K�H�� �E�R�D�U�G�� �R�I�� �G�L�U�H�F�W�R�U�V�� �K�D�V��
established the processes to ensure that executive management controls risks through the 
Mechanism of property defined framework. 
 
�7�K�H�� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �U�L�V�N�� �P�D�Q�D�J�H�P�H�Q�W���S�R�O�L�F�L�H�V�� �D�U�H�� �H�V�W�D�E�O�L�V�K�H�G�� �W�R�� �L�G�H�Q�W�L�I�\�� �D�Q�G��analyze the risks 
faced by the company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and 
adherence to limits.  

 
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed by the board annually to reflect 
�F�K�D�Q�J�H�V�� �L�Q�� �P�D�U�N�H�W�� �F�R�Q�G�L�W�L�R�Q�V�� �D�Q�G�� �F�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �D�F�W�L�Y�L�W�L�H�V���� �7�K�H�� �F�R�P�S�D�Q�\���� �W�K�U�Rugh its training 
and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive 
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. 

 
ii       Credit risk 

 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a 
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the 
�F�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �U�H�F�H�L�Y�D�E�O�H�V�� �I�U�R�P�� �F�X�V�W�R�P�H�U�V�� �D�Q�G�� �L�Q�Y�H�V�W�P�H�Q�W�V�� �L�Q�� �G�H�E�W�� �V�H�F�X�U�L�W�L�H�V���� �7�K�H�� �F�D�U�U�\�L�Q�J��
amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The Company monitor 
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credit risk very closely both in domestic and export market. The management impact 
analysis shows credit risk and impact assessment as low. 

 

       Trade and other receivable 
 

�7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���H�[�S�R�V�X�U�H���W�R���F�U�H�G�L�W���U�L�V�N���L�V���L�Q�I�O�X�H�Q�F�H�G���P�D�L�Q�O�\���E�\���W�K�H���L�Q�G�L�Y�L�G�X�D�O��characteristics 
of each customer. However, management also considers the factors that may influence the 
credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in 
which customers operate. 

 
The company management has established a credit policy under which each new customer 
�L�V�� �D�Q�D�O�\�]�H�G�� �L�Q�G�L�Y�L�G�X�D�O�O�\�� �I�R�U�� �F�U�H�G�L�W�Z�R�U�W�K�L�Q�H�V�V�� �E�H�I�R�U�H�� �W�K�H�� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �V�W�D�Q�G�D�U�G�� �S�D�\�P�H�Q�W�� �D�Q�G��
�G�H�O�L�Y�H�U�\�� �W�H�U�P�V�� �D�Q�G�� �F�R�Q�G�L�W�L�R�Q�V�� �D�U�H�� �R�I�I�H�U�H�G���� �7�K�H�� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �U�H�Y�L�H�Z�� �L�Q�F�O�X�G�H�V�� �P�D�U�N�H�W�� �F�K�H�F�N����
industry feedback, past financials and external ratings, if they are available, and in some 
cases bank references. Sale limits are established for each customer and reviewed quarterly. 
Any sales exceeding those limits require approval from the Directors of the company. 

 
About 80% of th�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���F�X�V�W�R�P�H�U�V���K�D�Y�H���E�H�H�Q���W�U�D�Q�V�D�F�W�L�Q�J���Z�L�W�K���W�K�H���F�R�P�S�D�Q�\���I�R�U���R�Y�H�U��
Five to Ten years, and no significant impairment loss has been recognized against those 
customers. In monitoring customer credit risk, Customers are reviewed according to their 
credit characteristics, including whether they are an individual or a legal entity, their 
geographic location, industry and existence of previous financial difficulties 
 
The company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its expected credit 
losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The management uses a simplified approach 
for the purpose of computation of expected credit loss for trade receivables. 
 
The carrying amount (net of loss allowances Rs Nil )of trade receivables is Rs. 
24,44,72,973/- ( 31st March, 2020 Rs. 27,40,43,880/-)  

 

Ageing of trade receivables are as under:- 
(In  Rs.) 

Particulars Less than 6 months More than 06 months         Total 
As at 31 march 
2021 

22,51,51,411/- 1,93,21,562/- 24,44,72,973/- 

As at 31 march 
2020 

25,99,48,366/- 1,40,95,514/- 27,40,43,880/- 

 
During the year, the Company has made minor write-offs of trade receivables; it does not 
expect to receive future cash flows or recoveries from collection of cash flows previously 
written off. The Company management also pursues all legal option for recovery of dues 
wherever necessary based on its internal assessment. 

 
iii.    Liquidity risk  
 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the 
obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or 
�D�Q�R�W�K�H�U���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���D�V�V�H�W���� �7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���D�S�S�U�R�D�F�K���W�R���P�D�Q�D�J�L�Q�J���O�Lquidity is to ensure, as for 
as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are fallen 
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or 
�U�L�V�N�L�Q�J���G�D�P�D�J�H���W�R���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���U�H�S�X�W�D�W�L�Rn. 
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Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability 
of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations 
when due and to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying 
businesses, the Company treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining 
availability under committed credit lines. 

�0�D�Q�D�J�H�P�H�Q�W���P�R�Q�L�W�R�U�V���U�R�O�O�L�Q�J���I�R�U�H�F�D�V�W�V���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���O�L�T�X�L�G�L�W�\���S�R�V�L�W�L�R�Q�����F�R�P�S�U�L�V�L�Q�J���W�K�H��
undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected future 
cash flows. This is generally carried out at unit level and monitored through registered 
office of the Company in accordance with practice and limits set by the Company. These 
limits vary by location to take into account requirement, future cash flow and the liquating 
cash flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet 
these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory 
requirements and maintaining debt financing plans. 

 

(a)      Financing arrangements 

The company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the 
reporting period. 

(In Rs.) 
Particulars As at 31 

March 2021 
As at 31 

March 2020 
Floating rate   
Expiring within one year (credit limit and other facilities) 3,85,72,880/- 6,61,60,857/- 
Expiring within one year (term loans) 1,28,33,328/- 1,01,83,833/- 

 
The credit limit facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank 
without notice. Subject to the continuance of satisfactory credit ratings, the bank loan 
facilities may be drawn at any time in INR and have an average maturity of 8 years 2 months 
as at 31 march 2021 (4 years 10 months as at 31 march 2020). 

(b) Maturities of financial liabilities  

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting 
date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and exclude contractual interest payments and 
the impact of netting agreements 

 
Particulars  Carrying  

Amounts 
31 March 2021 

                   Contractual Cash Flows 
    Total 2 Months 

Or 
Less 

2-
12Mont
hs 

1-5 
years 

More 
Than 
5 years 

Non- derivative Financial liabilities/Assets     

Borrowings 48,43,84,371 48,43,84,371   13,74,655 48,30,09,716 
Other non-current 
Financial liabilities 

9,14,35,289 9,14,35,289   9,14,35,289  

Short term borrowings 3,85,72,880 3,85,72,880  3,85,72,880   
Trade payables 35,23,69,937 35,23,69,937  35,23,69,937   
Other current financial 
liabilities 

2,57,78,907 2,57,78,907  2,57,78,907   

Preference Shares 1,06,98,853 1,06,98,853    1,06,98,853 
Total non-derivative 
liabilities  

1,00,32,40,237 1,00,32,40,237 - 41,67,21,724 9,28,09,944 49,37,08,569 
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The interest payments on variable interest rate loans in the table above reflect market forward 
interest rates at the reporting date and these amounts may change as market interest rates 
change. 

(iv)    Market risk  

Market risk is the risk that the Fair value of future cash flow of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: 
Currency rate risk, Interest Risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity 
price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risks include loans and borrowings, 
deposits, investments and foreign currency receivables and payables. The sensitivity analysis 
in the following sections relate to the position as at reporting date. The analysis excludes the 
impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of non-financial assets and 
liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant Profit and Loss items and equity is the effect of the 
assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and 
financial liabilities held as of March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020. 

a. Currency risk  

The company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising currency transaction, primarily 
with respect to the USD and small exposure in EUR and GBP> Foreign exchange risk arises 
from future commercial transactions and recognized assets and liabilities denominated in a 
�F�X�U�U�H�Q�F�\���W�K�D�W���L�V���Q�R�W���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�X�Q�F�W�L�R�Q�D�O���F�X�U�U�H�Q�F�\�����,�1�5�������7�K�H���U�L�V�N���L�V���P�H�D�V�X�U�H�G���W�K�U�R�X�J�K��
a forecast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows.  

�&�X�U�U�H�Q�F�\�� �U�L�V�N�V�� �U�H�O�D�W�H�G�� �W�R�� �W�K�H�� �S�U�L�Q�F�L�S�D�O�� �D�P�R�X�Q�W�V�� �R�I�� �W�K�H�� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �I�R�U�H�L�J�Q�� �F�X�U�U�H�Q�F�\��
receivables and payables, taken by the Company. 

(i) Un-hedged in foreign currency exposure                                 

           (Figure in Foreign Currency) 
Particulars     As at 31 march 2021    As at 31 march 2020 

USD EUR  GBP CHF USD   EUR 
Financial assets/ liabilities       
Trade receivables -       - - - - - 
Net statement of financial position 
exposure 

-       - - - - - 

 

Sensitivity analysis 

A. Interest rate risk 

�7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���P�D�L�Q���L�Q�W�H�U�H�V�W���U�D�W�H���U�L�V�N���D�U�L�V�H�V���I�U�R�P���O�R�Q�J-term borrowings with variable rates, 
which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. During year ended 31 march 2021 
and 31 march 2020�����W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���E�R�U�U�R�Z�L�Q�J�V���D�W���Y�D�U�L�D�E�O�H���U�D�W�H���Z�H�U�H���G�H�Q�R�P�L�Q�D�W�H�G���L�Q���,�1�5�� 

During the Year the Company has obtained Corporate Term Loan of Rs. 40/- Crore from 
SBI @12.15% PA Fixed. This Loan is Optional conversion of Corporate Loan into 
FCNRBTL on fully hedged basis with two way swing facility with waiver of 0% hedging, 
subject to availability of FCNR (B) funds. By this stipulation, such Interest rate will 
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decrease when Increase in US $ rates and when US $ rates will decrease as a result, the 
interest rate burdon will increase but as per the terms and the conditions of the loan the same 
will not be more than 12.15% in any case. 

 
Currently t�K�H�� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V borrowings are within acceptable risk levels, as determined by the 
management; hence the company has not taken any swaps to hedge the interest rate risk.The 
Company constantly monitors the credit markets and revisits its financing strategies to achieve 
an optimal maturity profile and financing cost. 

 

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments 

The Company does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at 
fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date 
would not affect profit or loss. 

A. Commodity price risks 

The Company is exposed to the risk of price fluctuation of raw materials, dyes and chemicals, 
work-in-progress and finished goods. The Company manages its commodity price risk by 
maintaining adequate inventory of raw materials, dyes and chemicals, work �±in-progress and 
finished goods considering future price movement. To counter raw materials risk, the Company 
worked with various suppliers of Raw Material with the objective to material cost, enhances 
application flexibility and increase product functionality and also invested product development 
and innovation. The �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �%�R�D�U�G�� �R�I�� �'�L�U�H�F�W�R�U�V�� �K�D�V�� �G�H�Y�H�O�R�S�H�G�� �D�Q�G�� �H�Q�D�F�W�H�G�� �D�� �U�L�V�N��
management strategy regarding commodity price risk and its mitigation 

42. Disclosure as specified in Schedule V of SEBI (listing Obligation and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015: 

            (In Rs.) 
Name of the Loanee Maximum amount During the year Outstanding as at March 

31, 2021 
Nil  Nil  Nil  

43.    Disclosure u/s 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013: 
a) Particulars of loans given:- 

Sr. 
No 

Name of the 
Loanee 

Loan given  
During the  
Financial year 

Loan repaid 
During the 
Financial year 

Outstanding 
Balance at  
The year end 

    
Purpose 

1 Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil  
 

b) Particulars of Investments made:-                         Nil  

44.    Capital management 
 

�7�K�H���S�U�L�P�D�U�\���R�E�M�H�F�W�L�Y�H���R�I���W�K�H���P�D�Q�D�J�H�P�H�Q�W���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���F�D�S�L�W�D�O���V�W�U�X�F�W�X�U�H���L�V���W�R���P�D�L�Q�W�D�L�Q���D�Q��
efficient mix of debt and equity in order to achieve a low cost of capital, while taking into 
account the desirability of retaining financial flexibility to purpose the board of directors 
�U�H�J�X�O�D�U�O�\�� �U�H�Y�L�H�Z���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���F�D�S�L�W�D�O���V�W�U�X�F�W�X�U�H���L�Q���O�L�J�K�W���R�I�� �W�K�H�� �H�F�R�Q�R�P�L�F���F�R�Q�G�L�W�L�R�Q�V���� �E�X�V�L�Q�H�V�V��
�V�W�U�D�W�H�J�L�H�V�� �D�Q�G�� �I�X�W�X�U�H�� �F�R�P�P�L�W�P�H�Q�W�V���� �)�R�U�� �W�K�H�� �S�X�U�S�R�V�H�� �R�I�� �W�K�H�� �F�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �F�D�S�L�W�D�O�� �P�D�Q�D�J�H�P�H�Q�W����
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capital includes issued share capital, Preference shares capital and all other equity reserves. Debt 
includes term loans. During the financial year ended 31 March 2021. No significant changes 
were made in the objectives, policies or processes relating to the management of the comp�D�Q�\�¶�V��
capital structureexcept for budgeting for cash flow projections considering the impact of 
ongoing pandemic COVID - 19. 

(i) Debt equity ratio:         

    (In Rs.) 

Particulars As at 31 March 
2021 

As at 31 March 
2020 

Term loan from SBI & Unsecured Loans 5,12,05,388 14,92,46,083 
Total debt (A) 5,12,05,388 14,92,46,083 
Equity  share capital 7,00,07,670 6,09,31,760 
Other equity 20,77,91,756 15,75,11,171 
Total equity (B) 27,77,99,426 21,84,42,931 
( C ) Debt equity ratio % (C=A/B) 0.184 0.683 

 
Note: No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital 
during the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020. 

 
45. The COVID-19 outbreak continues to spread rapidly in India and across the Globe. Various 

measures taken by the Government to contain the spread of virus including lock-downs have 
affected economic activity and caused disruption to regular business operations of the Company. 
The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemics will Impact Company's results will depend on 
future developments, which are highly uncertain. The Company has made Initial assessment of 
recoverability of its assets like trade receivables, Inventories and other asset and is reasonably 
certain that these need not be impaired. However the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a 
continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration. The Impact of 
COVID-19 may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these Financial 
results and the Board will continue to closely monitor the developments. 

 
46. The Company has taken a Group Gratuity Policy for providing gratuity benefits under 

Group Gratuity Scheme from Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) and the premium 
paid to the LIC is charged to Profit & Loss A/c. The payment is made as per computation 
made by LIC on the basis of Actuarial Valuation. 

 
47. The company lease assets primarily consists of Office Premises which are of Short-Term 

Lease with the twelve months or less and low value Leases. For those Short-Term and Low 
value leases, the company recognizes the lease payments as an expense in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the term of lease. 

 

During the year, the company has recognized Rs. 7,20,000/- as Rent expenses in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (March 31, 2020 Rs. 8.37,500/-). 
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48.  The company during the year have received a government grant of Rs.230.00 Lakhs from MPID 
towards investment in new plant and machinery. The said government grant has been sanctioned 
for 07 years aggregating to Rs. 1613.00 Lakhs which will be received within 07 year period on 
annual basis.  

  
49. Figures for the previous year have been regrouped wherever found necessary. 
 
50. Figures have been rounded off to nearest thousand. 
 
 
 
 

For ABMS& Associates         For, TIRUPATI STARCH & CHEMICALS LTD.  
             Chartered Accountants 

FRN :030879C 
 
       
                 
      
Atul Sharma 
Partner 
MNo:075615      

RAMESH GOYAL                  ROHIT MANGAL  
                                                                              WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR                C. F. O. 

 
 
 
 Place: Indore       SALONI NAIDU  
 Date:June 28, 2021             COMPANY SECRETARY  
            ACS No. : 59058 

AMIT MODI                         RAMDAS GOYAL
MANAGING DIRECTOR      WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR

DIN: 03124351                           DIN : 00150037

                                                                                            DIN: 00293615
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PROXY FORM - FORM MGT - 11 
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the  

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
Name of the Member (s)        : 
Registered Address                : 
E-mail Id         : 
Folio No/ Client Id DP ID      : 
 
�,���:�H�����E�H�L�Q�J���W�K�H���P�H�P�E�H�U�����V�����R�I�����«�«�«�«�����V�K�D�U�H�V���R�I���W�K�H���D�E�R�Y�H���Q�D�P�H�G���F�R�P�S�D�Q�\�����K�H�U�H�E�\���D�S�S�R�L�Q�W 
1. Name   �����«�«�«�«�«�«�«�«  
    Address   : 
    E-mail Id   : 
    Signature   ���«�«�«�«�«�����������������������������������������������������������������R�U���I�D�L�O�L�Q�J���K�L�P 
2. Name     �����«�«�«�«�«�«�«�«  
    Address   : 
    E-mail Id   : 
    Signature   ���«�«�«�«�«�����������������������������������������������������������������R�U���I�D�L�O�L�Q�J���K�L�P 
3. Name               �����«�«�«�«�«�«�«�«  
    Address   : 
    E-mail Id   : 
    Signature   ���«�«�«�«�«��  
 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote on a poll for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 35th Annual General Meeting of the 
company, to be held on Monday, the 27th day of September, 2021 at the Registered Office at 1st �)�O�R�R�U�����³�6�K�U�H�H�U�D�P���&�K�D�P�E�H�U�V�´����
12 Agrawal Nagar, Main Road Indore-452001 at 3:00 P.M. and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as 
are indicated below: 

 
S. No. Resolutions 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 

2021 and the Reports of the Board and Auditors thereon. 
 

2. To appoint a Director in Place of Mrs. Shashikala Mangal (DIN: 00107187) who retires by rotation and being 
eligible offers herself for re-appointment. 
 

3. To appoint a Director in Place of Mr. Ramdas Goyal (DIN: 00150037) who retires by rotation and being eligible 
offers himself for re-appointment. 
 

4. To appoint M/s. ABMS and Associates as Statutory Auditors of the Company. 
 

5. To Re-Appoint Mr. Ramesh Agrawal (DIN: 07599354) as an Independent Director of the Company. 
 

6. To Confirm the Re-appointment of Mr. Ramesh Goyal (DIN: 00293615) as a Whole Time Director of the 
Company. 

7. To increase the Authorised Share Capital of the Company. 

8. Alteration in Clause V of Memorandum of Association consequent to Alteration in Authorised Share Capital of 
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the Company. 

9.  To increase Remuneration of Mr. Amit Modi (DIN: 03124351), Managing Director of the Company. 

10.  To increase Remuneration of Mr. Ramdas Goyal (DIN: 00150037), Chairman & Whole Time Director of the 
Company. 

11.  To increase Remuneration of Mr. Yogesh Agrawal (DIN: 00107150), Whole Time Director of the Company. 

12. To increase Remuneration of Mr. Prakash Bafna (DIN: 00107070), Whole Time Director of the Company. 
 
 
�6�L�J�Q�H�G���W�K�L�V�«�«�«�� �G�D�\���R�I�«�«�«���������� 
 
Signature of Shareholder�«�«�«�«�«�«�«�«�«�«�«�«�«�«����     
 
Signature of Proxy holder(s)�«�«�«�«�«�«�«�«�«�«�«�«�«��  
 
Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered 
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 
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ATTENDANCE SLIP  
 

FOR THE 35TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF TIRUPATI STARCH & CHEMICALS LTD. HELD 
ON MONDAY , THE 27TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2021 AT 3:00 P.M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE 
OF THE COMPANY AT 1 ST FLOOR, �6�+�5�(�(�5�$�0�� �&�+�$�0�%�(�5�6�´�� 12, AGRAWAL NAGAR,  MAIN 
ROAD INDORE -452001. 
 
 
R. F. No.                                                  : 
Mr./Mrs./Miss                                         : 
���6�K�D�U�H�K�R�O�G�H�U�V�¶���Q�D�P�H���L�Q���E�O�R�F�N���O�H�W�W�H�U�V��  
 
I/We certify that I/We am/are registered shareholder / proxy for the registered shareholder of the company. 
 
I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 35th Annual General meeting of the company at the registered office of 
the company on Monday, the 27th day of September, 2021. 
(If signed by proxy, his name should be written in block letters) 
  
 
  
 _______ 
                                                                                           ���6�K�D�U�H�K�R�O�G�H�U�V���S�U�R�[�\�¶�V���6�L�J�Q�D�W�X�U�H�� 
 
Note: 

1. Shareholders/proxy holders are requested to bring the attendance slips with them when they come to the 
meeting and hand over them at the entrance after affixing their signatures on them. 

2. If it is intended to appoint a proxy, the form of proxy should be completed and deposited at the Registered 
Office of the Company at least 48 hours before the Meeting.  
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BOOK �z POST 
If undelivered, please return to:  
TIRUPATI STARCH & CHEMICALS LTD.  
Regd. Office: 
Shreeram Chambers, 
First Floor, 12 Agrawal Nagar, 
Main Road, Indore-452001 (M.P.) 
 




